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Chairman’s Statement

EEHRES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of
Sinoref Holdings Limited (“Sinoref” or “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present its annual
report for the year ended 31 December 20183.

In 2013, the iron and steel industry was still suffering in the
“Harsh Winter” where the long-lasting problems of overcapacity
and volatile raw materials prices have driven profitability of the
steel industry downwards. In spite of the macroeconomic data
suggesting an ongoing recovery in China, the modest economic
growth has not worked as a catalyst to spur steel demand.
According to the China Iron and Steel Association (CISA), the
China Steel Price Index (CSPI) dropped 8.6%, compared to
the previous year to 102 points in 2013. The lower steel price
has further dampened the business of the steel manufacturers
and downstream supply chains. Given the deteriorating market
environment and more intense competition, the narrowing profit
margin of the Group resulted in its first loss since Sinoref’s
establishment in 2005 of RMB56.8 million.

With regard to the adverse industry conditions, the new Chinese
government leadership showed an unprecedented determination
to address the overcapacity issue. The recent announcement of
the stringent policies emphasised on controlling the expansion
of production capacity and eliminating technically obsolete
facilities, with a target to decrease steel capacity by 80 million
tonnes over the next five years. According to the CISA, the
steel production has continuously declined in late 2013, an
indicator that the stringent controls are taking effect. In order
to comply with upcoming stricter emission control standards,
the steel manufacturers are speeding up facility upgrade,
which in turn should boost the demand for advanced steel flow
control products. We believe that the subsequent restructuring
would consolidate the sector and create a healthy operating
environment for the long-term development of the industry.
Sinoref will maintain the competitiveness of its high quality
products and leverage the potential opportunities presented by
supportive policies in the coming years.
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As the leading manufacturer of advanced steel flow control
products in China, the Group is dedicated to provide superior
and differentiated products to our customers in both domestic
and overseas markets. Our high-quality products have earned
the appreciation of leading steel manufacturers in Europe,
Russia and Korea. We are confident to maintain our leading
position in the domestic market, and raise the brand recognition
around the globe market as well.

To stay ahead, we understand the importance of technology
advancement. We have continued to put great emphasis on
research and development. As at 31 December 2013, we have
obtained a total of 18 registered patents.

In addition to organic growth, we have been actively exploring
acquisition opportunities to diversify our business and broaden
our revenue base. In March 2014, we entered into a share
transfer agreement to acquire a company principally engaged
in the sales and production of paper converting equipment. We
are confident in the industry prospect and the target company’s
growth potential in view of the enormous market opportunities
and its high quality products, renowned brand and extensive
sales network. We believe that this acquisition will bring in
additional growth drivers to Sinoref and boost our overall
performance in the future.

Moving forward, riding on our competitive edge in the steel
flow control industry and our strategy to diversify toward more
profitable business sectors, we believe Sinoref will regain its
strength in the near future and start to reward shareholders with
outstanding results.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our heartfelt gratitude to the staff for their steadfast
dedication amidst the adverse and challenging environment,
as well as to our shareholders and business partners for their
invaluable support and trust over the years.

Xu Yejun
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWED

MARKET REVIEW

In 2013, the global economy was turbulent made complicated
by the myriad issues it faced. In the international community,
there were the United States debt crisis, the European debt
crisis and the unrest in the Arab world. The aftermath of all
of these political and economic crises continued to affect
the recovery of the world’s economy, leading to a decline in
demand for commodities-based products, a fragile commodities
market, sluggish selling prices for commodities and financial
market volatility. In the People’s Republic of China (“China”
or “PRC”), gross domestic product reported a growth of
approximately 7.7% in 2013, the slowest since 1999. The
growth slowdown in the domestic economy, coupled with
overcapacity but inadequate demand, excess inventory, inflation
of iron ore prices, and continuing decline in steel price have
put enormous pressure on the production and operations of
steel manufacturers. As a result, a certain amount of large steel
manufacturers were still suffering losses.

Even worse, many small industry players were forced to be
closed down due to a break in the capital chain. According
to the World Steel Association, the total production of crude
steel in China has increased from approximately 708.8 million
tonnes in 2012 to approximately 779.0 million tonnes in 2013,
representing an increase of approximately 9.9%. However,
according to the China Steel Logistics Professional Committee,
China’s steel purchasing managers’ index was 47.7% in
December 2013, remaining in a contraction mode for the fourth
consecutive month since September. The dilemma of excess
output and sluggish demand has exerted significant impact
on steel prices. According to the National Development and
Reform Commission of China, steel prices in the first half of
2013 declined considerably, and lingered at low levels during
the second half of the year. In December 2013, the composite
steel price index dropped to 99.28, which was even lower than
that of 1994.

Although the new leadership governing China has taken
measures to accelerate industry restructuring, the pace is
still slower than anticipated and the desired result has yet to
materialise.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW
Consolidation in customer base

Building on its strong reputation in the industry and leading
technologies in the design and manufacturing of advanced steel
flow control products, the Group has further consolidated its
customer base in the PRC market. During the year ended 31
December 2013, the Group has secured another two strategic
important new customers, Jiangsu Shagang Group (I &k 8 &
B B PR AF]) and Hebei Shougang Qian’An Iron & Steel Co. Ltd
OA4bE E 808 228l A TR A 7]). Meanwhile, the Group continued
to be the key supplier of the top 10 steel manufacturers in the
PRC, including Baosteel Group, Shougang Group, Hebei Group
and Wuhan Steel. Going forward, we will continue to explore
business opportunities with domestic steel manufacturers to
drive further business growth.

Expanded overseas market

During the year under review, the global economy has seen
a moderate recovery which has created more international
business opportunities. As a result, the management
understands the importance of diversifying its customer base
and has devoted substantial efforts to further expand the
overseas market. The Group has built up the reputation of the
brand “Sinoref” among the steel industry over the years and
has successfully gained good reputation among many of the
world’s most renowned steel manufacturers, including: the
world’s largest steel and mining company, ArcelorMittal; and
the world’s largest manufacturer, processer and distributor of
special long steel products, Carboref GmbH; and during the
period under review, the Group recorded encouraging results in
expanding into overseas markets, with overseas revenue rising
from approximately RMB13.2 million in 2012 to approximately
RMB25.9 million in 2013. We will strive to enhance our global
brand awareness with the view to strengthen the Group’s
leading position in the industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREFNWED

Enhanced research and development

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group has attained
five new utility patents and one new registered invention
patent. This brings the Group’s total to 18 registered patents
as at the end of the year under review. The strong research
and development capability is a core competitive edge of
Sinoref that has helped the Group become China’s second
largest advanced steel flow control product manufacturer just
a few years after its founding. Apart from further developing
its steel flow control products business, the Group has also
been seeking potential opportunities in steel-related as well
as non-steel related businesses. During the period under
review, the Group significantly boosted its investment in
research and development to further diversify its business. For
the year ended 31 December 2013, Sinoref’s research and
development team has 32 professionals, and the expenses on
research and development amounted to approximately RMB14
million, representing approximately 7.5% of the Group’s total
revenue. As a result, we have adopted a number of leading
self-developed technologies which enable the Group to enjoy
a preferential tax rate as a Chinese High-tech Enterprise,
supporting future earnings to record new heights.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s revenue
was approximately RMB186.4 million (2012: RMB322.7 million).
The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the volatility of
product price, and the decrease of sales volume, in particular
that generated from the domestic market. Total sales volume
decreased by approximately 11.7% from approximately 10,100
tonnes for the year ended 31 December 2012 to approximately
8,917 tonnes for the year ended 31 December 2013. This
decrease was due to a reduced purchase volume from
customers caused by the sluggish market demand in the steel
industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cost of sales

The Group’s cost of sales mainly comprised costs of raw
materials, labour, depreciation and other direct costs of
sales. During the year under review, the Group’s cost of sales
decreased by approximately 4.6% from RMB169.7 million in
2012 to approximately to RMB161.9 million in 2013, primarily
due to the decrease in purchase of raw materials and the
decrease in sales volume.

Gross profit & gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit decreased from approximately
RMB153.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2012 to
approximately RMB24.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2013. As a result, the Group’s gross profit margin also dropped
from approximately 47.4% for the year ended 31 December
2012 to approximately 13.2% for the year ended 31 December
20183. The decrease in the Group’s gross profit and gross
profit margin were mainly attributable to (i) the decline in sales
volume; and (i) the decrease in average selling price.

Impairment loss recognised in respect of property, plant
and equipment

Due to the weakening of steel market in China of continuing
decline in steel demand and price, the recoverability of the
relevant carrying amounts of the Group’s plant and equipment
exceeded their recoverable amounts. An impairment loss of
approximately RMB29.1 million has been recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

Selling and distribution costs

The Group’s selling and distribution costs comprised sales
commissions, sales staff costs and transportation costs.
During the year under review, our selling and distribution costs
decreased to approximately RMB20.6 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 30.1% from approximately
RMB29.5 million for the previous year. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in sales commissions and
transportation costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEREFNWED

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses increased by
approximately 5.1% from approximately RMB31.2 million for
year ended 31 December 2012 to approximately RMB32.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2013. The increase
was primarily due to the increase of research and development
expenses, amounting to approximately RMB14.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2013 as the Group dedicated
significant efforts to enhance its competitive advantage in
advanced technologies and exposure of new business. The
increase was off-set by the drop in share-based payment from
approximately RMB12.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2012 to approximately RMBO0.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2013 due to the cancellation of certain equity-settled
share options in 2013.

Taxation

In 2012, the Group’s PRC subsidiary has successfully applied
for the Chinese High-tech Enterprise Certification (71 B & ¥ 1i7
1 ¥3R5%). As a result, the Group’s PRC subsidiary was subject
to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) rate of 15% for the
year under review and the same rate will apply in the year
ending 31 December 2014.

(Loss) Profit and total comprehensive (expense) income for
the year

As a result of the challenging conditions, the Group’s loss and
total comprehensive expense for the year was approximately
RMB56.8 million, compared to a profit and total comprehensive
income for the year of approximately RMB72.5 million for the
previous year. The decrease was mainly due to a combination
of factors, which include (i) the decrease in revenue as a result
of a declining sales volume and average selling price; and (i)
impairment loss recognised in respect of property, plant and
equipment. The Group’s earnings per share decreased from
RMB6.04 cents for the year ended 31 December 2012 to
RMB4.73 cents loss per share in 2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Final dividends

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for year ended 31 December 2013 (2012 Nil).

Capital structure, liquidity and financial resources

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s net
cash used in operating activities was approximately RMB52.1
million (2012: net cash generated from operating activities
RMB77.7 million) and the Group’s bank balances and cash was
approximately RMB312.3 million (2012: RMB369.8 million).

Total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2013 was
approximately RMB563.3 million (2012: RMB619.7 million).
The Group does not have any outstanding bank loan as at 31
December 2013 (2012: nil).

Gearing ratio is calculated based on total debt at the end of the
year divided by total assets at the end of the year multiplied by
100%. As at 31 December 2013, as the Group was at a net
cash position without any bank borrowings, long term debts or
payables incurred not in the ordinary course of business, the
gearing ratio of the Group was nil.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any pledge of
assets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWED

Foreign exchange exposure

The major functional currency of the Group is RMB but during
the year under review certain transactions of the Group are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Euro dollars and US dollars,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk. During the
year under review, the Group did not commit to any financial
instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk and
did not adopt a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management of the Group monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies

The Group had no material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and associated companies during the year under
review.

Significant investments held

During the year under review, except for investments in
subsidiaries, the Group did not hold any significant investment
in equity interest in any other company.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had not provided any form
of guarantee for any company outside the Group. The Group
is not involved in any current material legal proceeding, nor
is our Group aware of any pending or potential material legal
proceeding involving the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

HUMAN RESOURCES AND STAFF REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 287 staff members
employed in mainland China and Hong Kong (2012: 243). Total
staff costs for the year were approximately RMB31.2 million
(2012: RMB49.0 million).
Group continued to reinforce the training provided to its staff

During the year under review, the

by providing training and study opportunities for management
staff and professional technicians. In addition, the Group has
provided timely update to all staff with the latest government
policies of the industry to continuously enhance the professional
standard and quality of the staff. Meanwhile, the Group
has provided competitive remuneration for the staff which
encourages them to commit themselves and serve customers

whole-heartedly.
PROSPECTS

In the face of the continuous sluggish performance of the steel
industry, the PRC government has issued a directive “Guiding
Opinions of the State Council on Resolving Serious Production
Overcapacity Conflicts” BJ7 7 B8 FA (b iR = At Bk BB F - B 1Y
BB E H ) in October 2013, which aims to eliminate 80 million
tonnes of steel production capacity by 2017. The government
will monitor the results and implement an appraisal system,
thereby encouraging local governments to take immediate
action. The Group will closely monitor the impact of the changes
in industrywide policies, and apply its leading technologies to
meet evolving production requirements of steel manufacturers.

Looking ahead, despite the weakness in 2013, the management
is cautiously optimistic in its outlook in 2014, given the
improving economic conditions and supportive government
policies. We believe that the PRC government will devote more
attention to meet its capacity reduction target by accelerating
the closure of obsolete capacity and restructuring within the
steel industry, which will as a result create a healthier and
supply-demand balanced environment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWED

While the steel industry has been delivering disappointing
performances and is still facing uncertainties, in addition to the
business of manufacturing steel flow control products, we are
also evaluating other potential business opportunities, with the
aim to enhance our profitability. Both the up- and down-stream
business segments in the steel industry will be our targets, yet
the Group would take an open attitude to any complementary
business with bright market prospects. In March 2014, the
Company has entered into a share transfer agreement with
Rainbow Phoenix Holdings Limited (“Rainbow Phoenix”) to
acquire 100% interest of Accura Machinery & Manufacturing
(Taicang) Company Limited (“Accura”), a company principally
engaged in the sales and production of paper converting
equipment and other related equipment. Pursuant to such share
transfer agreement, Rainbow Phoenix agreed to guarantee that
the audited consolidated net profit after taxation of Accura for
the financial year ending 31 December 2014 shall not be less
than RMB10 million. “Accura” is a renowned brand in China
with its headquarters in the Yangtze Delta. The acquisition will
provide an excellent opportunity to diversify the business of the
Group and broaden the revenue base of the Group.

In the long run, the Group’s strategy will include evaluating
suitable investments that present development opportunities,
which provide additional stable income streams that lead to
sustainable probability.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report
in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 December
2013.

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and endeavours in following the code
provisions (“Code Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) and Corporate Governance
Report, contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules (“Listing Rules”)
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The Board considers
such commitment is essential for the growth of the Group and
for maximising the interest of the shareholders (“Shareholders”)
of the Company. The Company regularly reviews its corporate
governance practices to ensure that the latest development in
corporate governance can be followed and observed.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the financial year under review, the Company had
complied with all the Code Provisions for the period from 1
January 2013 to 31 December 2013, except for the deviations
from Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which are explained
below.

According to Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Xu Yejun, in addition to his duties as the chairman of the
Company, is also responsible for the strategic planning and
overseeing all aspects of the Group’s operations as the chief
executive officer of the Company. This constitutes a deviation
from Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. Mr. Xu Yejun as
one of the founders of the Group has extensive experience and
knowledge in the core business of the Group and his duties for
overseeing the Group’s operations is clearly beneficial to the
Group. The Board considers that this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Group.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted on 7 June 2010 its securities dealing
code (“Code”) regarding the dealings of securities of the
Company by the Directors and senior management of the
Group, on terms no less exacting than the required standard
under the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

The Company, having made specific enquiry of all Directors
and senior management of the Group, all the Directors and
senior management of the Group have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard as set out in the
Code and Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules regarding securities
transactions by Directors and senior management of the Group
throughout the financial year ended 31 December 2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group’s overall strategic
policies. The management is delegated with the authority and
responsibility by the Board for the management of the Group.

The Board is currently composed of three executive Directors
namely Mr. Xu Yejun as the chairman, Mr. Zhao Ping and Mr.
Ho Yuk Hay; one non-executive Director, Mr. Chow Chi Wa;
and three independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Yao
Enshu, Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve and Mr. Wong Kwong Chi. The
biographical details of the Directors are set out under “Directors
and senior management” on pages 29 to 34 of this annual
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2013.

In accordance with Article 105(A) of the articles of association
of the Company, Mr. Xu Yejun will retire as Director by rotation
and, being eligible, offer himself for re-election as Director at the
annual general meeting of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report

Further, pursuant to Article 109 of the articles of association
of the Company, Mr. Zhao Ping (appointed as an executive
Director on 30 October 2013), Mr. Ho Yuk Hay (appointed
as an executive Director on 30 October 2013), Mr. Chow Chi
Wa (appointed as a non-executive Director on 27 November
2013) and Mr. Wong Kwong Chi (appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 27 November 2013) shall retire at
the annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible,
offer himself for re-election.

The non-executive Director was appointed for a specific term of
three years.

The Board meets regularly to review and determine the
corporate strategies and overall strategic policies. Each of the
members of the Board has full access to relevant information
at the meetings. During the financial year ended 31 December
2013, the Board has convened four regular meetings at which,
among other things, the following activities were conducted at
such regular meetings:

(1) approved the interim results and interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2013;

(2) approved the annual results and annual report for the
financial year ended 31 December 2012 and matters to be
considered at the annual general meeting of the Company;

(8) reviewed and approved corporate strategies of the Group
for the financial year ending 31 December 2014; and

(4) reviewed the performance and financial position of the
Group.
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EEERRE

The Board is also responsible for determining the Company’s
corporate governance policies and performing corporate
governance duties set out under the CG Code. Its corporate
governance duties include, among others, (i) to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (ii) to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (iii) to review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal or regulatory
requirements; (iv) to develop, review and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees
and Directors; and (v) to review the Company’s disclosure in its
corporate governance report.

Apart from the regular board meetings, the Board met on other
occasions when a board-level decision on a particular matter
was required.

Details of the Directors’ attendance records at the board
meetings and general meeting during the financial year ended

31 December 2013 are as follows:

Board General

Directors Meetings Meeting
Meetings attended/held

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Yejun (Chairman) 4/4 1/1
Mr. Zhao Ping' —/- —/-
Mr. Ho Yuk Hay! —/- —/-
Dr. Zhang Lanyin? 4/4 11
Mr. Gu Aoxing?® 4/4 11
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Chi Wa* —/- —/-
Mr. Gao Zhilong® 4/4 11
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Yao Enshu 4/4 1/1
Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve 4/4 1/1
Mr. Wong Kwong Chi* —/- —/-
Mr. Yang Fugiang® 4/4 1/1

! Appointed on 30 October 2013
2 Re-designated to non-executive director on 24 June 2013 and
resigned on 27 November 2013

8 Resigned on 27 November 2013
4 Appointed on 27 November 2013
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Whilst the Board as a whole is to determine the corporate
strategies and overall strategy policies, the executive Directors
and senior management of the Company, as delegated by
the Board, are responsible for implementing the determined
strategies and policies and the day-to-day management of the
Group’s business.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors and
senior management” of this annual report, there is no other
relationship (whether financial, business, family or other material/

relevant relationships) among the members of the Board.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

Pursuant to Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to
ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed
and relevant. The Company shall be responsible for arranging
suitable training for all Directors at the Company’s expense.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Directors also
participated in the following trainings:
Directors Type of training
Executive Directors
Mr. Xu Yejun (Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Ping'

Mr. Ho Yuk Hay! A,
Dr. Zhang Lanyin?

W W W W W

Mr. Gu Aoxing?®

ERELHRE

EX22 VAT N TELERE MEERR
HBE  MRTEERARRSREEE
AEE=SLRE BENTELE RS MK
RARAEEXBHAEERE -

BAFEREFRSREERE] —HAE

BN EEEEREZEL B EAMH
B (THmE% - 5% KEHEMER
BRAMzSZBER) -

AR £ AR BIE3.130 - AR A B KE

Kﬁié"ﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁaﬁ? MR E
R NRARIRRABBULIFATEETIE

?E’);LEM" °

EEE

ok

R 3B e SF B A <F AR X EA6.5
- FTEZEEEBBELMFEEMNEIE
E) - EINAME I E MBI - ARRE
ERESSHEHNBEREBER - A2 7
BRFBEERHEGENEY - BRAHAX
NGRS

RBE-T—=F+-_A=+—BLF
B EER2MT AT

E=E RIS
MITES

HREELELE (XF) L
A B¥A
fal NE A% 52 A4 AR - BRR
R RIE L2 B
FERRIT R A B¥A

Annual Report 2013 —Z—=FF

19



20

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRS

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Chi Wa?* A B
Mr. Gao Zhilong® B
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Yao Enshu B
Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve A B
Mr. Wong Kwong Chi* A B
Mr. Yang Fugiang?® B

! Appointed on 30 October 2013
2 Re-designated to non-executive director on 24 June 2013 and
resigned on 27 November 2013

8 Resigned on 27 November 2013
4 Appointed on 27 November 2013

A:  attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums

B:  reading newspapers, journals, Company newsletters and
updates relating to the economy, general business, steel
industry or Directors’ duties and responsibilities, etc.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

During the year under review, the Board adopted a board
diversity policy setting out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board. The Company considered diversity of Board
members can be achieved through consideration of a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills
and knowledge. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (“Nomination
Committee”) is currently consisted of four members, comprising
one executive Director, namely Mr. Xu Yejun (chairman) and
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yao
Enshu, Mr. Tsui, Siu Hang Steve and Mr. Wong Kwong Chi. It
was established by the Board with effect from 27 March 2012
and its duties are clearly defined in its terms of reference which
have been prepared and adopted according to the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year
under review and conducted the following activities:

(1) reviewed the structure, size and diversity of the Board;
and

(2) reviewed the retirement of Directors by rotation and the
re-appointment of the retiring Directors at the 2013 annual
general meeting of the Company.

Details of attendance of each member of the Nomination
Committee during the financial year ended 31 December 2013
are as follows:

Attendance
Executive Director
Mr. Xu Yejun 2/2
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yao Enshu (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve 2/2
Mr. Wong Kwong Chi —/—

(Appointed on 27 November 2013)

Mr. Yang Fugiang (Resigned on 27 November 2013) 11
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (“Remuneration
Committee”) currently comprises four members, including three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Yao Enshu (chairman),
Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve and Mr. Wong Kwong Chi, and one
executive Director, Mr. Xu Yejun. The Remuneration Committee
was established by the Board on 7 June 2010 and its duties are
clearly defined in its written terms of reference which have been
prepared and adopted according to the Code Provisions.

The Remuneration Committee meets annually to review the
remuneration policies and packages for Directors and senior
management of the Company and to make recommendations
to the Board on such remuneration policies and packages. No
Director takes part in any discussions and decisions about his
own remuneration.

Details of attendance of each member of the Remuneration
Committee during the financial year ended 31 December 2013
are as follows:

Attendance
Executive Director
Mr. Xu Yejun 2/2
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yao Enshu (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve 2/2
Mr. Wong Kwong Chi —/-

(Appointed on 27 November 2013)

Mr. Yang Fugiang (Resigned on 27 November 2013) 11
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the
Remuneration Committee had convened two meetings with
full attendance by its members and conducted the following
activities:

(1) reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management of the Company; and

(2) reviewed the terms of the service contracts of all the
executive Directors by reference to their performance.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit Committee”)
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve (chairman), Mr. Yao Enshu and
Mr. Wong Kwong Chi. The Audit Committee was established
by the Board on 7 June 2010 and its duties are clearly defined
in its written terms of reference which have been prepared and
adopted according to the Code Provisions.

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the
Board and the Company’s auditor in matters coming within
the scope of the Group’s audit. It also reviews the annual and
interim reports of the Company prior to their approval by the
Board, the effectiveness of the external and internal audit and of
internal controls and risk evaluation.

During the financial year under review, the Audit Committee has
convened two meetings and conducted the following activities:

(1) reviewed the annual and interim reports of the Company;
(2) reviewed the report of internal audit department, internal
controls system and financial matters of the Group in

pursuance of the written terms of reference;

(8) reviewed the audit plans and findings of the external
auditor of the Company; and

(4) made recommendation to the Board on the appointment
of the external auditor.
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Details of attendance of each member of the Audit Committee
during the financial year ended 31 December 2013 are as
follows:

Attendance
Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Yao Enshu 2/2
Mr. Wong Kwong Chi —/-
(Appointed on 27 November 2013)
Mr. Yang Fugiang (Resigned on 27 November 2013) 2/2

There was no disagreement between the Board’s and the Audit
Committee’s view on the selection, appointment of the external
auditor.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the nature
of the audit and non-audit services provided by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fees
paid/payable by the Company for such services are as follows:

Services rendered Fee paid/payable

HK$
Annual audit 1,250,000
Interim review 510,000
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements for each financial period which gives a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2013, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting
policies and applied them consistently, and have prepared the
financial statements on a historical cost basis.

The statement of the external auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on page 54 to 55 of this annual
report of the Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective
system of internal control. The Board has entrusted the Audit
Committee with the responsibility to review the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control annually or at any time necessary.
The review covers all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management
functions, and takes into account the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training programmes
and budget.

The Board has considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

The following procedures for the Shareholders to convene
an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) of the Company
are prepared in accordance with Article 64 of the articles of
association of the Company:

(@) one or more Shareholders (“Requisitionist(s)”) holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the
right of voting at general meetings shall have the right,
by written notice, to require an EGM to be called by the
Directors for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.

(b)  Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or
the company secretary of the Company at the following:

Principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong

Address: Suite 2007, Tower 1, Lippo Centre, 89
Queensway, Hong Kong

Email: ir@sinoref.com.hk

Attention: the Board of Directors/Company Secretary

Registered office of the Company

Address: Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box
2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands

Attention: the Board of Directors/Company Secretary

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiEBRERAQE
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() The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition.

(d) If the Directors fail to proceed to convene such meeting
within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit, the
Requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Directors shall be reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by
the Company.

Procedures for shareholders to direct enquiries to the Company

For matters in relation to the Board, the Shareholders can
contact the Company at the following:

Address: Suite 2007, Tower 1, Lippo Centre, 89
Queensway, Hong Kong

Email: ir@sinoref.com.hk

Tel: (852) 2530 0401

Fax: (852) 2530 0662

Attention: the Board of Directors/Company Secretary

For share registration related matters, such as share transfer
and registration, change of name or address, loss of share
certificates or dividend warrants, the registered Shareholders
can contact:

Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Address: Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185
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Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings

To put forward proposals at a general meeting of the Company,
a Shareholder should lodge a written notice of his/her proposal
(“Proposal”) with his/her detailed contact information at the
Company’s principal place of business at Suite 2007, Tower 1,
Lippo Centre, 89 Queensway, Hong Kong.

The request will be verified with the Company’s branch share
registrars in Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the board of directors of the
Company will be asked to include the Proposal in the agenda
for the general meeting.

The notice period to be given to all the Shareholders for
consideration of the Proposal raised by the Shareholder
concerned at the general meeting varies according to the nature
of the Proposal as follows:

(@) Notice in writing of not less than 14 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days if the Proposal requires
approval by way of an ordinary resolution of the Company
in an EGM.

(b)  Notice in writing of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 10 clear business days if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution of the Company in
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

(c) Notice in writing of not less than 21 clear days and not
less than 20 clear business days if the Proposal requires
approval by way of a special resolution or an ordinary
resolution of the Company in an annual general meeting of
the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 December 2013.
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Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xu Yejun, aged 49, the co-founder of our Group, is the
chairman, chief executive officer and our executive Director.
Mr. Xu was appointed as our executive Director on 4 February
2010. He is responsible for the overall strategic planning and
management of our Group. Mr. Xu has extensive experience in
the advanced steel flow control products industry, and has been
engaging in such business for over 25 years.

Mr. Xu studied in B & KA H 2 (Yixing Dapu Secondary
School*) from 1979 to 1981. Mr. Xu had been trained in J&F5 i
NI RSB (Luoyang Institute of Refractories Research®) from
1984 to 1986. He had worked in B 8 £ i A M £ (Yixing
Magnena Refractory Materials Factory*) from 1981 to 1983 and
from 1987 to 1989, in Yixing Wellfire Nonmetal Materials Co.,
Ltd. EEEMEIFSBMHARARF from 1990 to 1995 and
in EEANEZEAR AR (Yixing Zhongeun Kiln Products Co.,
Ltd.*) from 1996 till the establishment of Sinoref (Yixing) in 2005.
As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Xu was a director, the
chairman and the legal representative of ZE i B &% (B ) = 4% f &
BBRAF] (Sinoref International (Yixing) Co., Ltd.*), and a director
of Sinoref (Hong Kong) Limited and Sinoref (BVI) Limited. Each
of ZEM B (HHE) S HFHEBMR AT (Sinoref International (Yixing)
Co., Ltd."), Sinoref (Hong Kong) Limited and Sinoref (BVI)
Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company as at
the date of this annual report.
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EEREREERE

For his research item WH R ZERZTZXINEERE W AN
B E MW R (The research and manufacture of new high
quality refractory accessory materials in glass melting furnace
regenerative chamber series*), Mr. Xu was awarded A B&8 T 3
BH#E% (China Light Industry Technological Advancement
Award*) by FREIE T4 € (China Light Industry Association®)
in 1991, /8™ &} 2 £ 1l7 1 25 48 (Science and Technology
Progress Awards of Shanghai) by /&M RIBE T £ iETEE
B & (Science and Technology Progress Awards Jury, Shanghai
Municipality) in 1995 and /@M EHEKREKEFEZ (Certificate
for Accomplisher of Technological Advancement in Shanghai*)
by HEHRIEZRTE E € (Science and Technology Commission
of Shanghai Municipality) in 1996. Mr. Xu was also awarded £
BT R iTiE 27 82 (Science and Technology Progress Awards
of Shanghai) by E/&EMEZHlTE S RFEZE L (Science
and Technology Progress Awards Jury, Shanghai Municipality)
in 1996 in respect of BEFEAERETR FRERIIEEE R
& (The research and manufacture of high quality specific
regenerative chambers checkers series accessory products®).

Mr. Zhao Ping, aged 50, was appointed as our executive
Director on 30 October 2013. Mr. Zhao graduated from %
BIKE (Anhui University) in 1985 with a bachelor’s degree in
Chinese. He has served as the general manager of F3Tiz
SRR EBR AR (Shenzhen Yuanjing Shengdi Investment
Company Limited*) since 2009. He has been responsible for
corporate strategic planning, investment and management in
real estates, hotel and natural resources projects. Prior to that,
Mr. Zhao has accumulated more than 20 years of experience in
investment, business operation and cultural development from

various corporations.

Mr. Ho Yuk Hay, aged 34, was appointed as our executive
Director on 30 October 2013 and company secretary of our
company on 11 February 2014. Mr. Ho graduated from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a bachelor’'s degree
in Accountancy in 2001 and a master’s degree in Corporate
Governance in 2012. Mr. Ho is a Certified Public Accountant
in Hong Kong and an Associate of the Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and Administrators in London.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Ho has worked in an accounting firm with international
presence for over nine years. Mr. Ho has acted as the chief
financial officer of Sino Splendid Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange
(Stock Code: 8006)) (“Sino Splended”) since September 2012.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Chow Chi Wa, aged 45, was appointed as our non-
executive Director on 27 November 2013. Mr. Chow received
a master’s degree in corporate governance from the Open
University of Hong Kong. He has acted as an executive
director, chief executive officer and the company secretary of
Sino Splendid since March 2013. During his tenure in Sino
Splendid, Mr. Ho Yuk Hay, an executive Director, acted as the
chief financial officer of that company. Mr. Chow is a certified
public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. He is an associate of the
Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries and the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He possesses
extensive experience in finance and accounting.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yao Enshu, aged 81, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 7 June 2010. He was appointed
as B TERHI AE A& (Deputy Head of the Personnel
Department in the Ministry of Metallurgical Industry*) in the
PRC in 1983 and was appointed as /A& LEHBASZAAE
(Head of the Human Resources Department in the Ministry
of Metallurgical Industry*) in 1988. He was recognised as a
senior economist by J&& T2l (The Ministry of Metallurgical
Industry®) in the PRC in 1992.
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Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve, aged 40, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director of the Company
since 19 November 2010. Graduated from The University of
Auckland, New Zealand with a bachelor’s degree in Commerce
(Accounting) in 1995, Mr. Tsui is a Certified Public Accountant
in Hong Kong and a Chartered Accountant in New Zealand. He
has also obtained the qualification of Financial Risk Manager
Mr. Tsui
worked for a major international accounting firm as an audit

from the Global Association of Risk Professional.

manager from 1995 to 2001. From 2001 till now, he works as
auditor in various companies. Mr. Tsui has more than 15 years
of experience in the auditing field.

Mr. Wong Kwong Chi,
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 27
November 2013. Mr. Wong received a Bachelor of Science
degree and a Master of Business Administration degree from

aged 62, was appointed as our

the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He was an executive
director of Sino Splendid from March 2010 to July 2012 and
the chief executive officer of such company from March 2010
to November 2013. During his tenure at such company, Mr.
Ho Yuk Hay, an executive Director, acted as its chief financial
officer. Mr. Wong was a director of CDC Corporation, a
company formerly listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market, until
September 2011. Mr. Wong has served as an independent non-
executive director of Glory Mark Hi-Tech (Holdings) Limited (a
company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code:8159)) since September 2004. He
was an independent non-executive director of Fountain Set
(Holdings) Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 420)) from August 1998 to June
2012. He has been a founding partner of Whiz Partners Asia
Ltd. since November 2013.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wang Zhizhong, aged 46, is the deputy general manager
and the head of our Production Department. Mr. Wang joined
our Group in 2005. Mr. Wang was qualified as an assistant
engineer by BT AER (Wuxi Municipal Personnel Bureau®)
in 1995. He obtained L@ MEHIKRTKEFEZ (Certificate
for Accomplisher of Technological Achievement in Shanghai*)
for each of the project named “/E4& 4B E A L= D ETR”
(Development of hollow composite fusion cast blocks*) and “X
A DA AR A AW AM B BRI R (Research on
novel refractories for super structure of glass furnace*) from £
BHRERMZE® (Science and Technology Commission of
Shanghai Municipality) in 2000.

Mr. Wang worked in the production technology department in
various companies including Yixing Wellfire Nonmetal Materials
Co., Ltd. EEEMEIFCBM A BR AR and EEPNEXFR
‘A7) (Yixing Zhongcun Kiln Products Co., Ltd.*), before joining
our Group in 2005. In addition, Mr. Wang, jointly with Mr. Xu and
Dr. Zhang, invented the FAI#EHIR AREBHERAZERE (Mono
block Stopper with controlled gas flow) which was registered as
a patent (in respect of utility) in the PRC in May 2010.

Mr. Wen Zhuowei, aged 36, joined us in 2007 as head of our
Production Department and worked as head of our Purchasing
Department in 2013. Mr. Wen is mainly responsible for our
procurement and environmental protection matters. Mr. Wen
graduated from JI#EEEEHRAZ (Jiangsu Radio and TV
University*). He worked for /T& M8 8 AMmARAE (Nike
Jiangsu) Sport Products Co., Limited*) as production supervisor
from 2000 to 2005 and worked as shift leader in #MZEH (B
) BRA 7 (Weimi Science and Technology (Yixing) Co., Ltd*)
from 2006 to 2007 prior to joining our Group.

Mr. Tang Jishan, aged 40, joined us in 2007 as head of our
Research and Development Department. He obtained his
bachelor’s and master’s degree in Metallurgy of Iron and Steel in
2001, both from Wuhan University of Science and Technology.
He has experience in the field of metallurgical industry. He
worked in the sales department in Vesuvius Advanced Ceramics
(Suzhou) Co. Ltd.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Mr. Dai Donglin, aged 45, joined us in 2007 as executive
regional sales manager. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Arts from Henan University in 1992. He then joined Vesuvius
Advanced Ceramics (Suzhou) Co. Ltd. from 1995 to 2004.
Mr. Dai furthered his studies on Civil and Commercial Law
between 1998 and 2000 in Jilin University. He has many years
of experiences in sales management.

For the purpose of this section, “*” denotes unofficial English translation.
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The Directors are pleased to present their report and audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is primarily engaged in the manufacturing of
advanced steel flow control products used in the continuous
casting steel making process to protect, control and regulate
the flow of molten steel.

The Group’s turnover is mainly derived from business activities
in Mainland China. An analysis of the Group’s income for the
year is set out in note 8 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the Company’s major subsidiaries as at 31
December 2013 are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income on page 56 of this report.

The state of the Group’s and the Company’s affairs at 31
December 2013 is set out in the consolidated statement of
financial position and statement of financial position on pages
57 and 115 of this report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2013.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The result, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years, as extracted from the audited financial
statements, are summarised on page 120 of this report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of property, plant and equipment of the Group as at
31 December 2013 are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are
set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report,
there was a sufficiency of public float the Company’s securities
as required under the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2013, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed or sold any
of the Company’s listed securities.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to its
December 2013 amounted to
December 2012:

shareholders as at 31
approximately RMB117,270,000 (31
RMB92,414,000).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year attributable
to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as follows:

Percentage

of the total
purchases/sales
accounted for

Purchases
— the largest supplier 21.2%
— five largest suppliers combined 48.0%
Sales
— the largest customer 13.2%
— five largest customers combined 39.6%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had an interest
in the five largest suppliers or customers of the Group noted
above.

At no time during the year under review, none of the Directors,
their associates or shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any interest in the customers or suppliers disclosed
above.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Yejun (Chairman and chief executive officer)
Dr. Zhang Lanyin'

Mr. Gu Aoxing?

Mr. Zhao Ping®

Mr. Ho Yuk Hay?®

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Gao Zhilong?
Mr. Chow Chi Wa*

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yao Enshu

Mr. Yang Fugiang?

Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve
Mr. Wong Kwong Chi*

! Re-designated to non-executive director on 24 June 2013 and
resigned on 27 November 2013

2 Resigned on 27 November 2013

8 Appointed on 30 October 2013
4 Appointed on 27 November 2013

DIRECTORS’ PROFILES

Directors’ profiles are set out on pages 29 to 34 of this report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Xu Yejun, entered into a service contract with our Company
pursuant to which he agreed to act as executive Directors for
an initial term of three years with effect from 7 June 2010. The
term of service shall be renewed and extended automatically
by one year on the expiry of such initial term and on the expiry
of every successive period of one year thereafter, unless either
party has given at least three months’ written notice of non-
renewal before the expiry of the then existing term.

Mr. Zhao Ping and Mr. Ho Yuk Hay has entered into a service
contract with our Company pursuant to which they agreed
to act as executive Directors for an initial term of three years
with effect from 30 October 2013. The term of service shall be
renewed and extended automatically by one year on the expiry
of such initial term and on the expiry of every successive period
of one year thereafter, unless either party has given at least
three months’ written notice of non-renewal before the expiry of
the then existing term.

Mr. Yao Enshu, an independent non-executive Director, has
been appointed for an initial term of one year commencing from
7 June 2010 renewable automatically for successive term of
one year each commencing from the next day after the expiry
of then current term of appointment, unless terminated by either
Mr. Yao Enshu himself or our Company giving not less than
three months’ notice in writing expiring at the end of the initial
term or at any time thereafter.

Mr. Tsui Siu Hang, Steve, an independent non-executive Director
appointed on 21 November 2010, has been appointed for an
initial term of one year commencing from 21 November 2010
renewable automatically for successive term of one year each
commencing from the next day after the expiry of then current
term of appointment, unless terminated by either Mr. Tsui Siu
Hang, Steve himself or our Company giving not less than three
months’ notice in writing expiring at the end of the initial term or
at any time thereafter.
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Mr. Chow Chi Wa, our non-executive Director, and Mr. Wong
Kwong Chi, our independent non-executive Director has been
appointed for an initial term of one year commencing from 27
November 2013 renewable automatically for successive term of
one year each commencing from the next day after the expiry
of then current term of appointment, unless terminated by either
party has given at least three months’ notice in writing expiring
at the end of the initial term or at any time thereafter.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than normal statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Apart from the particulars disclosed in note 28 under the
heading “Related party transactions” to the financial statements,
there were no other contracts of significance in relation to the
Company’s business, to which the Company or any of the
Company’s subsidiaries was a party nor there were any other
contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business
between the Company or any of the Company’s subsidiaries
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the year
in which a Director had, whether directly or indirectly, a material
interest.

No contract of significance had been entered into between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries.

No contract of significance for the provision of services to
the Company or any of its subsidiaries by the controlling
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
entered into.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests or short positions of
the Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQO”)), as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Companies (“Model Code”), are set out below:

Long and short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares

Number of

Name of Director Nature of interest securities held

(Note 1)
EENR EEHE FRisAES#E
(K1zt1)
Mr. Xu Yejun Beneficial owner 330,000,000 Shares (L)
REBERE EmBEAA 330,000,0008% A& 17 (L)
Note:
1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interest
or short positions of the in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the
register of the Company required to be kept under section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Part XV of the SFO or pursuant to
the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2013, so far as was known to the Directors
of the Company, the following persons, other than the Directors
and chief executive of the Company, had an interest or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company,
which were required to be recorded in the register maintained
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

Long and short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares

Name of Number of

Shareholder securities held

(Note 1)

Nature of interest

BSR4 HaMH SRS E

(BfiE1)

Ms. Gu Shuping
(Note 2)

Interest of spouse 330,000,000 Shares (L)

B 2+ (fat2) BBz 330,000,000R% A% 17 (L)
Mr. Chen Hong Beneficial owner 205,012,000 Shares (L)
PRtk e A EmEEA 205,012,000 % 17 (L)
Notes:

1. The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares.

2. Ms. Gu Shuping is the wife of Mr. Xu Yejun.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company are not aware that there is any party who, as
at 31 December 2013, had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company, which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or be directly or
indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances
of general meetings of the Company or substantial shareholders
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”), which was adopted on 7 June 2010 (the
“Adoption Date”), for the purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to selected eligible participants for their contribution
to the Group. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended, the
Share Option Scheme will remain in force for ten years from the
Adoption Date.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include the
following:

()  any employee (whether full time or part time) of the Group
or any entity (the “Invested Entity”) in which any member
of the Group holds any equity interest (including any
executive director but excluding any non-executive director
of the Group or any Invested Entity);

(i) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(i) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity;

(iv) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(v) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to the Group or any
Invested Entity;

(vi) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued by
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;
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(vii) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of the Group or
any Invested Entity; and

(viii) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliances or other business arrangement to the
development and growth of the Group.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
Shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme is
120,000,000, representing approximately 8.56% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual
report. The maximum number of Shares issuable upon exercise
of the options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group
(including both exercised and outstanding options) to each
participant in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company for the time being. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules),
are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive Directors (excluding independent non-executive
Director who is the grantee of the options). In addition, where
any grant of share options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive Director, or to any of their respective
associates, would result in the Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options already granted and to be granted
(including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such
person in excess of 0.1% of the Shares in issue and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Shares at
the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, in a 12-month
period up to and including the date of grant, such grant of
share options are subject to Shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.
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The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise period for
the share options granted is determined by the Board, whose
period may commence from the date of acceptance of the
offer for the grant of share options but shall end in any event
not later than 10 years from the date of the grant of the option
subject to the provisions for early termination under the Share
Option Scheme.

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option
Scheme shall be a price determined by the Board, but shall not
be less than the highest of:

()  the closing price of Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of the
offer of the grant, which must be a trading day;

(i)  the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant; and

(i) the nominal value of a Share.

Since the Adoption Date and up to 31 December 2013,
120,000,000 share options has been granted by the Company,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at 31 December 2013.
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DIRECTOR’S INTEREST IN SHARE OPTIONS

Movements of the options, which were granted under the Share
Option Scheme, during the year under review were listed below
in accordance with Rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules:

Name of Director ERgH
or his associate REARS
M. Xu Yejun RERSE

Dr. Zhang Lanyin FHREL

(Note 1) (H#1)
M. Gu Aoxing Biufns
(Note 1) (Wit1)
M. Gu Shuping Bigt
(Note 2) (W)
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- (5,000,000 - - 1408
- (4,000,000 - - 0476
- (500,000 - - 1408

RIFME AR B 2 BN @ B F R
Nz EBRE LM R RE17.07R25W

Exercise
period

fifEd

22/11/2011 to
2171172020
2/11/2011%
2171172020
22/11/2011 to
21/11/2020
2/11/20112
21/11/2020
211912012 to
26/9/2021
21/9/2012%
26/9/2021
221112011 to
21/11/2020
2/112011%
21/11/2020
211912012 to
26/9/2021
21/9/2012%
26/9/2021
22/11/2011 to
2171172020
2/112011%
2171172020



Notes:

1. Each of Dr. Zhang Lanyin and Mr. Gu Aoxing resigned as Director
on 27 November 2013.

2. Ms. Guo Shuping is the wife of Mr. Xu Yejun, the chairman, the
chief executive officer and an executive Director of the Company
and hence an associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) of Mr. Xu
Yejun.

3. These options granted under the Share Option Scheme have a
term of ten years commencing from 22 November 2010 and shall
vest and become exercisable in three tranches in the proportion
of 30%, 60% and 100% on 22 November 2011, 22 November
2012 and 22 November 2013 respectively.

4. These options granted under the Share Option Scheme have a
term of ten years commencing from 27 September 2011 and shall
vest and become exercisable in three tranches in the proportion
of 30%, 60% and 100% on 27 September 2012, 27 September
2013 and 27 September 2014 respectively.

Further details of share options were stipulated in note 25 to
the financial statements. Apart from the aforesaid, at no time
during the year ended 31 December 2013 was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors of the Company or any of their spouses or
children under the age of 18 to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in the Company or any other body
corporate.

Report of the Directors
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EEERE

EMPLOYEES’ INTEREST IN SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

Details of the options to subscribe for shares of the Company
under the Share Option Scheme for the period under review are
as follows:

EERMEREBZED

REBEHA - RIEBRETSTREAR
Al 2 BERAEREIB AN T

No. of share options

WEHBE

Outstanding at ~ Granted Exercised Forfeited
Date of 1 January during during  during
grant 2013 theyear  theyear the year
RI8-Z
-R-f
Class of grantee KEAER RHAY RETE  ERBH  EROE AL

Directors (Note 1) B2 (1) 22111/2010 13,000,000 - -
(Note 3)
(H#3)

271972011 8,000,000 - - -
(Note 4)
(Hiit4)

Other employees EWEE (fi2) 221112010 47,000,000 - - -
(Note 2) (Note 3)
(Wits)

27/9/2011 52,000,000 - -

(Note 4)
(1)
Notes:
1. Details of options granted to the Directors are set out in the

paragraph headed “Directors’ Interest in share options” in the
Report of the Directors above.

2. Other employees include employees of the Group (other than
Directors) working under employment contract of the Group
which are regarded as “continuous contract” for the purpose of
the Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiEBRERAQE

Cancelled

during

the year

FhiH

(13,000,000

(8,000,000)

(43,000,000)

(48,000,000)

Kiat

Lapsed Outstanding at
during 31 December
the year 2013
—2-zf

+ZA=+-H

S LE3i

- 4,000,000

- 4,000,000

Exercise
price of
share options

Tz
fiER
HKS
BT

1.408

0476

1.408

0476

Exercise
period

]

221112011 to
111172020
2120112
111172020
211912012 to
26/9/2021
21/9/2012%
26/9/2021
2211112011 to
21/11/2020
2/11/20112
21/11/2020
211912012 to
26/9/2021
21/9/2012%
26/9/2021

BRTEFBhEZFEARLXESS
WENE=RNBEREZERS] K-

HtE SR EREBEASENERSOT

EZAEEIER (BEEHBI)

& S &

BAORBREGD (BREDIESTE) )

BRIHEAH] -



3. These options granted under the Share Option Scheme have a
term of ten years commencing from 22 November 2010 and shall
vest and become exercisable in three tranches in the proportion
of 30%, 60% and 100% on 22 November 2011, 22 November
2012 and 22 November 2013 respectively.

4. These options granted under the Share Option Scheme have a
term of ten years commencing from 27 September 2011 and shall
vest and become exercisable in three tranches in the proportion
of 30%, 60% and 100% on 27 September 2012, 27 September
2013 and 27 September 2014 respectively.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE COMPANY’S SECURITIES

Other than as disclosed under the sections “Share Options”
and “Directors’ Interest in Shares” above, at no time during the
year under review was the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or chief executives of the Company or their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) to have
any right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the
Group in the usual course of business are set out in note
28 to the financial statements. None of these related party
transactions constitutes a discloseable connected transaction
as defined under the Listing Rules.

Report of the Directors
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EEERE

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or the substantial shareholders of the
Company and their respective associates (as defined under the
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business which competes or
may compete with the business of the Group or has any other
conflict of interest with the Group during the year and up to the
date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees and senior
management of the Group is set by the remuneration committee
of the Company on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard
to market competitiveness, individual performance and
achievement.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to among other Directors and other eligible employees
of the Group. Details of the scheme are set out in note 25 to
the financial statements.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period
are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

PLACING OF EXISTING SHARES AND
SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES

On 10 January 2014, the Company entered into a conditional
placing and subscription agreement with a placing agent
and Mr. Chen Hong (“Vendor”) in relation to (i) the placing of
a maximum of 200,000,000 existing ordinary shares of the
Company to not less than six placees who are not acting in
concert with connected persons of the Company at HK$0.38
per Share (“Placing”), representing a discount of approximately
18.28% to the closing price of HK$0.465 per Share on 10
January 2014; and (ii) the subscription of up to 200,000,000
Shares of HK$0.01 each by the Vendor (“Subscription”) at
HK$0.38 per Share. The Directors considered that the Placing
and the Subscription represent an opportunity to raise capital
for the Company while broadening the Shareholder base
and capital base of the Company. Accordingly, the Directors
consider the Placing and the Subscription are in the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. As the Vendor
was a substantial shareholder and thus a connected person
of the Company, the Subscription constituted a connected
transaction under the Listing Rules.

The Placing and the Subscription were completed on 10
January 2014 and 20 January 2014 respectively and a total of
200,000,000 Shares were allotted and issued to the Vendor.
The net proceeds raised per Share upon completion of the
Placing and the Subscription are approximately HK$0.375 per
Share. The whole amount of the net proceeds of approximately
HK$75 million will be used for general working capital and/or
to finance potential investment projects. Details of the Placing
and the Subscription were set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 10 January 2014.
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EEERE

ACQUISITION OF THE ACCURATE GROUP

On 7 March 2014, the Company as purchaser and Rainbow
Phoenix Holdings Limited, an independent third party, as
vendor entered into a share transfer agreement (“Share
Transfer Agreement”) in relation to the acquisition of the
entire equity interest in Accurate Trade International Limited
(together with its subsidiaries, the “Accurate Group”) at a
consideration of RMB55,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$69,750,000) (“Acquisition”). RMB45,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$57,070,000) of the consideration will
be settled by allotting and issuing 92,052,000 shares of the
Company at HK$0.62 each on the completion date of the
Acquisition and the remaining RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$12,680,000) will be settled by allotting and
issuing 20,456,000 shares of the Company at HK$0.62 each
within seven business days upon the fulfillment of the profit
guarantee of the Accurate Group for the financial year ending
31 December 2014 as set out the Share Transfer Agreement.
As at the date of this annual report, the Accurate Group was
principally engaged in sales and production of paper converting
equipment and other relating equipment through its operating
subsidiary, Accura. Upon completion of the Acquisition, the
Accurate Group will become a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. As at the date of this report, the Acquisition has
not been completed subject to fulfillment of certain terms and
conditions and the relevant regulatory approvals. Details of the
Acquisition were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 7 March 2014.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report”
of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in the Listing Rules for the purposes of reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process and internal controls
of the Group.

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiEBRERAQE
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The Audit Committee currently comprises Mr. Tsui Siu Hang,
Steve (Chairman), Mr. Yao Enshu and Mr. Wong Kwong Chi.
The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed with the
management and the external auditor for the financial reporting
matters including the annual results for the year ended 31
December 2013.

AUDITOR

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditor, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the qualification for attending the annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on 30 May 2014,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from 28
May 2014 to 30 May 2014 (both dates inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify
for attending the annual general meeting, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on 27 May 2014.

By order of the Board
Sinoref Holdings Limited
Xu Yejun

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31 March 2014
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBE RS

Deloitte.
=3

TO THE MEMBERS OF SINOREF HOLDINGS LIMITED
EMEEARAT

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sinoref Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to
119, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2013, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 March 2014
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REeRERHEMGEEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-A=+—HLFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Interest income on bank deposits

Impairment loss recognised in
respect of property, plant and
equipment

Selling and distribution costs

Administrative expenses

(Loss) profit before taxation
Taxation

(Loss) profit and total comprehensive

(expense) income for the year
attributable to owners of
the Company

(Loss) earnings per share
Basic and diluted

L'UN
SHERA

E7

RITIFFREYFBHA

R - BB MR
HERRBIER B

HE My AR
TR

Briial (E1R) A
IR

ZN/NSIE 2PN R
(BR) B EFAEE
(FX) WARRER

Zi (BER) &7

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiEBRERAQE

2013 2012
—Z=—=F —E——F

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b5 AR®BTT ARETIT
7 186,436 322,671
(161,891) (169,687)

24,545 152,984

1,300 1,399

15 (29,131) -
(20,608) (29,474)

(32,846) (31,244)

10 (56,740) 93,665
9 (36) (21,186)
(56,776) 72,479

14

(RMB4.73 cents)
(ANE#4.739)

RMB6.04 cents
AR#6.045




Non-current assets ERDHEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - HEREE

Prepaid lease payments B HEENIE

Current assets MENEE

Inventories ey

Trade receivables g 5 WA

Bills receivables FEW %

Other receivables, deposits and HmEWsaE - ek
prepayments AR RIE

Prepaid lease payments FENHEEE

Tax recoverable AU EF IR

Bank balances and cash RITEHR LB

Current liabilities mERE

Trade payables B 5 FE

Other payables and accruals
Tax liabilities

H A JEN IR M ERH B A
HIAAE

Net current assets nEEERE

Total assets less current BERERTDAR
liabilities

Non-current liability ERDAER

Deferred tax liabilities EERIEEE

Capital and reserves BEXR R

Share capital A& 7%

Reserves s

Total equity gk

The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 119 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
31 March 2014 and are signed on its behalf by:

EF
DIRECTOR

Notes
k=3

15
16

17
18
19

16

20

21
22

23

24

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mEMBARRR

At 31 December 2013
RZZ—=F+=HA=+—H

2013 2012
—2—=F 25
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTT
73,475 111,604
9,628 9,862
83,103 121,466
22,939 19,979
172,365 131,151
32,854 46,937
2,254 685
235 235
2,681 4,294
312,322 369,805
545,650 573,086
28,712 22,5637
17,456 32,066
5,528 6,500
51,696 61,103
493,954 511,983
577,057 633,449
13,720 13,720
563,337 619,729
104,201 104,201
459,136 515,528
563,337 619,729

MESCEIEZHGAMBEHRRAERS
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

eSS R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-A=+—HLFE

Share
Share Share Special  Statutory options  Retained
capital  premium reserve  reserves reserve profits Total
k& RHER BARE  EERFE BRERE | REEN it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
(Note a) (Note b)
(Fi3ta) (FizED)
At 1 January 2012 RZZ-_F
—-A-H 104,201 80,442 46,867 39,273 19,939 254,123 544,845
Profit and total comprehensive  EREH B2 EUMA
income for the year B - - - - - 72,479 72,479
Final dividend for year ended ~ BZ2ZF——%F
31 December 2011 +ZRA=1—-H
IFEE 7 RERE - - - - - (9,840) (9,840)
Recognition of equity settled  BEARAZLE AR
share-based payments BEBNZ - - - - 12,245 - 12,245
Transfer to statutory reserves  BEZETHEE - - - 9,545 - (9,545) -
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—F+-4
=ft—H 104,201 80,442 46,867 48,818 32,184 307,217 619,729
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREBR2ZEFY
expense for the year ke - - - - - (66,776) (56,776)
Recognition of equity settled ~ BERRAZEURD
share-based payments BEBET - - - - 384 - 384
Release of share options reserve Wit SR AR EER
upon cancellation of BRUERERER
equity-settled share options ERE
arrangement - - - - (30,038) 30,038 -
At 31 December 2013 R-E—=F
+-A=t-H 104,201 80,442 46,867 48,818 2,630 280,479 563,337
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Notes:

(@)

Special reserve represents the difference between the nominal
value of shares of the Company issued as consideration in
exchange for the aggregate of the paid-up capital of the
subsidiaries of the Company arising upon the corporate
reorganisation to rationalise the Group’s structure prior to listing
of the Company’s shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”), the PRC subsidiary is
required to provide for PRC statutory reserves, including
enterprise expansion fund and general reserve fund, by way of
appropriations from its statutory net profit (based on the PRC
statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiary) but before
dividend distributions.

All appropriations to the funds are made at the discretion of the
PRC subsidiary’s board of directors. The board of directors of the
PRC subsidiary shall decide on the amounts to be appropriated
based on its profitability each year.

The enterprise expansion fund may be used to increase registered
capital subject to approval from the relevant PRC authorities. The
general reserves fund may be used to offset accumulated losses
or increase the registered capital subject to approval from the
relevant PRC authorities.

REEDEER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

FRlREEENARRRNETBHE R
SABRAR ([HAFT]) EHATAT &
EAREREMETRAAEAZE  F
BB ERRBRMDHREMETZA
RERRMEEE - B RS DR
VN ZN:OECE AR

REEPE AR ([HE ) BEED
FOER - —KP BB AR ALEEE
EAFEER (RIBZT BB AR BA
EFEIHRE) RO RS BHR L PR E
SETREERKE BRCXERES
L—REEES -

B2 MANDEIDAZTREMNEARZ
EZeMBERE-- TEMBRARCES
SRREBEESFRNENMRER T D
B2 BRIR »

CEERESURMEMEMER
RIS HR P B ARPT 2 S A 1R T AT 4E
B —RFHED A ARIEHERGEE
IR INEE M A AR - MR ERIS AR RE R B B
FIZHL/ERTTAIER -
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-A=+—HLFE

Operating activities
(Loss) profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Interest income

Write-off of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of prepaid lease payments

Share-based payments expense

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

(Increase) decrease in inventories

Increase in trade receivables

Decrease (increase) in bills receivable

(Increase) decrease in other receivables,
deposits and prepayments

Increase in trade payables

(Decrease) increase in other payables
and accruals

Net cash (used in) from operations
PRC income tax refunded (paid)

Net cash (used in) from operating activities

Investing activities
Interest received
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash used in financing activity
Dividends paid

Net (decrease) increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the year,
representing bank balances and cash

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiEBRERAQE

EEEH
BRMEAT (B51R) A

HATSBELRE
ISCON
WIEME - BERRE
WE - BERRETE
RYE - BE LR EERN

REEE

RN HE TR H
VAR BB TR

LEEREPH CKERERE

FE (Bm) Hd

5 AR N

BRRERD (B0)

Hio KR - Be RANRIR
() B

BB RN FREM

Hio BN AR EHER
CRL) 5 n

(FiR) TR &S8R

#E
BRE (Bf) FEMEHR

BEED (FA) ARALPHE

RRED
EUFIE
BEYE  BELRE
RREDMAREPH

REZDMARS
ENEE

BeRASEEY (RD) @
B

FNRERBAEFEN

FREGRBEFEN
ARITRE SRR SR

2013 2012
—Z—=f —E-CF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARETT
(56,740) 93,665
(1,300) (1,399)

- 7

12,590 12,635
29,131 -
234 235

384 12,245
(15,701) 117,388
(2,960) 4,934
(41,214) (13,246)
14,083 (7,222)
(1,569) 3
6,175 1,530
(11,491) 21
(52,677) 103,408
605 (25,699)
(52,072) 77,709
1,300 1,399
(6,711) (5,035)
(5,411) (3,636)

- (9,840)
(57,483) 64,233
369,805 305,572
312,322 369,805




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the section headed “Corporate
Information” to the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 30.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current year:

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2009-2011 cycle

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z-—=F+-A=+—HUFE

—RE#H

AATER S BB M AER
@B A 7 RA D 7R 7 B 32
b AARERBEERES
BB AR AR E
¥ — PR -

ARAR R/ —RREEBRRAR] - AR
AIMME AR Z EZEBEHNME
30 °

HAUBHREAARKEZY  mA
REMBRNRBZEEER -

AWM RAEERTEEME
ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬂé%ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ

RAEE  AEBDEREAUT
MEAGHEAR ((HERHMA
1) Wi 2 37T RATIE T & BB 15
FeEg) .

Amendments to

Disclosures — Offsetting financial

HKFRS 7 assets and financial liabilities
Amendments to Consolidated financial
HKFRS 10, statements, joint arrangements
HKFRS 11 and and disclosure of interests in
HKFRS 12 other entities: Transition
guidance
HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in
other entities
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKAS 19 (as revised

in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised

in 2011)

Employee benefits

Separate financial statements

BEMEHRE BB ERE%ER

A2 187] —TENERC
T——FE
FEME

EEVBREEN HE-KEESR

BTIRZIEFT EEREHAE

EEMEREER GEMBHRE &

105 - BEH CERZPEETA

TG HuER

ER RN @ BEES

RS R

F1298 2187

EREMEHREED SEVB®RE

105

BEMEHREER  HRZH

F115

EEVBREEN HEAHMEEZ

128 =

BEVBREEN QFERE

E13%

EBeERIE19 EEEF

% (RZT——

FEIBE])

EE R B EIREK

F27% (R=Z
——EEIET)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z-—=F+_A=+—HIL&FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKAS 28 (as revised Investments in associates and
in 2011) joint ventures

Amendments to Presentation of items of other
HKAS 1 comprehensive income
HK(IFRIC) — INT 20 Stripping costs in the production
phase of a surface mine

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures
set out in these consolidated financial statements.

New and revised Standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the package of five standards on consolidation, joint
arrangements, associates and disclosures comprising
HKFRS 10 “Consolidated financial statements”, HKFRS 11
“Joint arrangements”, HKFRS 12 “Disclosure of interests
in other entities”, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) “Separate
financial statements” and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011)
“Investments in associates and joint ventures”, together
with the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and
HKFRS 12 regarding transitional guidance.

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) is not applicable to the
Group as it deals only with separate financial statements.

The application of these five standards effective for annual
period beginning 1 January 2013 will not have significant
impact on the results and financial position of the Group
as the Group owns 100% equity interest in all of its
subsidiaries and does not have any associates or joint
ventures at 31 December 2013.

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiEBRERAQE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 13 “Fair value measurement”

The Group has applied HKFRS 13 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 13 establishes a single
source of guidance for, and disclosures about, fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad: the
fair value measurement requirements of HKFRS 13 apply
to both financial instrument items and non-financial
instrument items for which other HKFRSs require or
permit fair value measurements and disclosures about fair
value measurements, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-
based payment”, leasing transactions that are within the
scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net
realisable value for the purposes of measuring inventories
or value in use for impairment assessment purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price
that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer
a liability, in the case of determining the fair value of a
liability) in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS
13 is an exit price regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. Also, HKFRS 183 includes extensive disclosure
requirements.

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. The
application of HKFRS 13 has not had any material impact
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z-—=F+-A=+—HUFE

FERMETRAEETEEME
BREEAN ((FRMEGHREE
A1) (#8)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z-—=F+_A=+—HIL&FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income”

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 1
“Presentation of items of other comprehensive income”.
Upon the adoption of the amendments to HKAS 1,
the Group’s “statement of comprehensive income” is
renamed as the “statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income”. The amendments to HKAS
1 retain the option to present profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in either a single statement or in
two separate but consecutive statements. Furthermore,
the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional disclosures
to be made in the other comprehensive income section
such that items of other comprehensive income are
grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of
other comprehensive income is required to be allocated
on the same basis — the amendments do not change the
option to present items of other comprehensive income
either before tax or net of tax. The amendments have been
applied retrospectively, and hence the presentation of
items of other comprehensive income has been modified
to reflect the changes. Other than the above mentioned
presentation changes, the application of the amendments
to HKAS 1 does not result in any impact on profit or loss,
other comprehensive income and total comprehensive
income.

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiEBRERAQE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z-—=F+-A=+—HUFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. ERMITREETEEME
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING REER ((FEMBEHREE
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) A ) (#8)

AREBYEREFEAUATERME
e RAE R 2 #E] R BRI &R M

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective: WE2ER

Amendments to Annual improvements to BT BHmEE BEUBERS
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2010-2012 cycle? Bz &aT HHU—ZE-F

FE-F—-
FRBZFE
Bhgii
Amendments to Annual improvements to EEYBHREE BEUKERS
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2011-2013 cycle? A Z1&5T BT ——
FEr-_T—=
FRCFE
M2
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments? ERGHHELE ST AS
BIZ59%%
HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts® BEUBmEE BHERLERPS
RIZE145%

Amendments to Mandatory effective date of BEUBmEE BEUBmEE
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 9 and transition RO R ERE  RIFEF z58
HKFRS 7 disclosures® B gk 42 Rl HlAE B B &

ESNeivd -1 BE RS

Amendments to Investment entities' BBV BRELE HREER
HKFRS 10, RIZE105%% - &

HKFRS 12 BT IRE 2
and HKAS 27 AIE125R R
BEFIERIE
275k 2 1&7]

Amendments to Defined benefit plans: g ENE  RERMEE
HKAS 19 Employee contributions? 1958 2 1&5] EEH®2
Amendments to Offsetting financial assets and ERGHEAE BHEESHEER
HKAS 32 financial liabilities’ 325k 2 1&37] TREE

Amendments to Recoverable amount disclosures BBGHENZE EemEE
HKAS 36 for non-financial assets' 365k 2 1EE] 2 AR [El

SRR

Amendments to Novation of derivatives and BEXRSFENE TETEEER
HKAS 39 continuation of hedge 399k 2 185 s

accounting’ LB

HK(FRIC) - INT 21 Levies' BE (BBRHE #HE

) - mEE21

Eid
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z-—=F+_A=+—HIL&FE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, except as disclosed below. Early application is
permitted.

8 Available for application — the mandatory effective date will
be determined when the outstanding phases of HKFRS 9
are finalised.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with limited exceptions.

5 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements
beginning on or after 1 January 2016.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these new and revised HKFRSs,
amendments or interpretations will have no material impact
on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiEBRERAQE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined
on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing
transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but
are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2
“Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z-—=F+_A=+—HIL&FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiEBRERAQE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B IS R R Y R

FEEMHBE (8)

TESTEREINWT -

RAEMBHRREBBARFARER
GIRSEGN-INCI sy AR
WK - MBI TER - BIARFER
SHEHIRE

o HWRENITEED

. RESEWEEHOEBTT
NAREEFEER &

s ARNTEERENMEERE
)

=B MBRKRA XY =H
HEZPE -BRZENE - AIA
SEENTEEETEFRERET ©

5 FABAHEZHNBERARZ
WARRX  RERNEBESZES
REAREAKEXREMEQEE
HEEHL  FFAREGRaREM
2HEHKERA -

MBARZMBBRRNEBTEZER
TEEHE  UWEESFBRRAR
SESHBER - -

MEEEARRHEENRAE  #
@ WA X RRE R (EAKE
KRERRIBZXHER) ORERAR
AR 2EHH -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sale related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

o the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

° it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

° the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z-—=F+_A=+—HIL&FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purpose are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortised over the lease term on a
straight-line basis. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease
and accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=—F+-A=+—HULHFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before taxation”
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to
utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they
are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=—F+-A=+—HULHFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the weighted-average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Research and development costs

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

° the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Research and development costs (continued)

° the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

° the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any),
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z-—=F+_A=+—HIL&FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment loss on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of
the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=—F+-A=+—HULHFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade receivables, other
receivables, bills receivables and bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
and bills receivables, assets that are assessed not to
be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For the financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and bills receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When a receivable
is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the investment at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-Z-—=F+_A=+—HIL&FE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade payables and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premium or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company
are required to make estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In applying the accounting policy on property, plant and
equipment with respect to depreciation, management
estimates the useful lives of various categories of
property, plant and equipment according to the industrial
experiences over the usage of property, plant and
equipment and also by reference to the relevant industrial
norm. If the actual useful lives of property, plant and
equipment are less than the original estimated useful
lives due to changes in commercial and technological
environment, such difference will impact the depreciation
charge for the remaining periods. At 31 December 2013,
the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is
RMB73,475,000 (2012: RMB111,604,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss,
the Group takes into consideration the estimation of
future cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 December 2013, the carrying
amount of trade receivables is RMB172,365,000 (2012:
RMB131,151,000), net of allowance for doubtful debts of
nil (2012: nil).

Estimated impairment loss recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment

Determining whether property, plant and equipment is
impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of
the cash-generating units to which the property, plant
and equipment has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value.

Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. The carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2013
is RMB73,475,000 (net of accumulated impairment loss
recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment
of RMB29,131,000) (2012: RMB111,604,000 (net of
accumulated impairment loss recognised in respect of
property, plant and equipment of nil)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and
cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising share capital, reserves and retained
profits.

The directors of the Group review the capital structure on
a continuous basis taking into account the cost of capital
and the risks associate with the capital. The Group will
balance its overall capital structure through payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt, if necessary.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(@) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets EREE

Loans and receivables (including B ERIE (B
cash and cash equivalents)

Financial liabilities eMAaR

Amortised cost b E ) DN

RekReEEY)
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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(b)

Sinoref Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade receivables, other receivables, bills receivables,
bank balances and cash, trade payables and other
payables. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

Certain transactions of the Group are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), Euro dollars (“EUR”)
and US dollars (“USD”) which are other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities (i.e.
RMB), which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. The Group does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated financial assets and liabilities at the end
of the reporting period are as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

The financial assets subject to foreign currency risk
represent the bank balances denominated in HKD
and trade receivables denominated in EUR and USD
held by the Group.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 5% appreciation or depreciation of the HKD,
EUR and USD against RMB. 5% is the sensitivity
rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment of the
possible change in foreign exchange rate. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period
for a 5% change in foreign currency rate. A positive
number indicates an (decrease) increase in post-
tax (loss) profit for the year where HKD, EUR and
USD strengthens 5% against the RMB. For a 5%
weakening of HKD, EUR and USD against RMB,
there would be an equal but opposite impact on the
post-tax (loss) profit for the year.

HKD BT
EUR BT
UsD ETT
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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(b)

Sinoref Holdings Limited

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange
risk as the year end exposure does not reflect the
exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to bank balances at the end of the
reporting period is considered as insignificant.
The Group does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties provided by the
Group is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties, as a means of mitigating
the risk of financial loss from defaults.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the

counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

At 31 December 2013, the Group has concentration
of credit risk as 7% (2012: 13%) and 30% (2012:
37%) of the total trade receivables which was due
from the Group’s largest customer and the five
largest customers, respectively. The customers of
the Group operate mainly steel casting plants in
the PRC and they are state owned enterprises with
sound financial position and good reputation in the
industry. The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in the PRC, which
accounted for 96% (2012: 98%) of the total trade
receivables as at 31 December 2013. In order to
minimise the concentration risk, the management
of the Group has delegated staff responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each of individual trade debt regularly to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amount. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be

required to pay.

Weighted
average
effective
interest rate
nEEy
ER7®

%

%

As at 31 December 2013 R-EB-=%+-A=+-H

Trade payables eV -
Other payables Hin 508 -
As at 31 December 2012 A—E—-—_§+-A=+—-H

Trade payables B ERFA -
Other payables HibEAZTE -

(c) Fair values measurements of financial
instruments

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of

financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in
the consolidated financial statements approximate

their fair values.
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REVENUE

Revenue represents the net amounts received and
receivable for goods sold less returns and discounts in the
normal course of business.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

HKFRS 8 “Operating segments” requires operating
segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports
about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker (the executive
directors) (“CODM”) in order to allocate resources to
segments and to assess their performance.

The Group’s operating activities are attributable to a
single operating segment focusing on the manufacture
and sale of advanced steel flow control products. This
operating segment has been identified on the basis of
internal management reports prepared in accordance with
accounting policies which conform to HKFRSs, that are
regularly reviewed by the CODM. The CODM monitors
the revenue from manufacture and sale of advanced steel
flow control products for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
However, other than revenue analysis, no operating results
and other discrete financial information is available for the
resource allocation and performance assessment. The
CODM reviews the (loss) profit for the year of the Group
as a whole for performance assessment. No analysis of
segment assets or segment liabilities is presented as they
are not regularly provided to the CODM.
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-A=+—HLFE

8.

OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)

Information about products

The revenue of the major products is analysed as follows:

Manufacture and sale of advanced
steel flow control products:

Subentry Nozzle

Stopper

Tundish Nozzle

Ladle Shroud

Others

Information about geographical areas

B R HE =
YT E
EARKA
EiE
KA
KA

Hitb

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s

revenue by geographical market:

The PRC (country of domicile)
Europe
Asia (other than the PRQC)

T E (FAER)
M
i (R E)

Over 99% of the Group’s non-current assets are located in

the PRC.
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OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued) 8.

Information about major customers

Revenue from a customer amounting to RMB24,565,000
(2012: RMB36,260,000) individually represents more than
10% of the Group’s revenue. Four types of products were

sold to that customer.

TAXATION

Current tax:
PRC Enterprise Income Tax

Under(over)provision in prior years
Deferred tax (note 23):
Current year

BIHEARLIR
B R PTIS
BEFEREBETR

(BREEE)
EERIA (KFE23) -
REE

Provision for the PRC Enterprise Income Tax was made

based on the estimated taxable profits calculated in

accordance with the relevant income tax laws and

regulations applicable to the Company’s PRC subsidiary.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the

“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,

the tax rate of the PRC subsidiary is 25% from 1 January

2008 onwards.
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B B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

TAXATION (continued)

On 6 August 2012, the PRC subsidiary obtained a Hi-
tech certificate which is valid for three years. According
to GuoShuiHan [2009] No.203, entities qualifying for the
Hi-tech status could enjoy a PRC Enterprise Income Tax
preferential treatment starting from the year of obtaining
the Hi-tech certificate. As a result, the PRC subsidiary was
subject to a PRC Enterprise Income Tax of 15% for three
years commencing from 2012.

According to a joint circular of the Ministry of Finance
and State Administration of Taxation — Cai Shui 2008 No.
1, dividend distributed out of the profits of PRC entities
generated after 1 January 2008 are subject to PRC
Enterprise Income Tax which is withheld by the PRC entity
at 5% of the dividend distributed. During the year ended
31 December 2013, deferred tax expense amounted to
nil (2012: RMB4,295,000) in respect of the undistributed
earnings of the Company’s PRC subsidiary has been
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of RMB20,668,000 (2012: nil) available for
offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of such unused tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. All the
unrecognised tax losses will expire in 2018.

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiEBRERAQE

MR (\)

R-ZT——F\AXE ZHEH
BRARCESSHEMERIES
B = F o R¥E B K[2009]5
2035 - AR RMEXRERNE
BERSSMRMEXEEEFE
AEXPECEMERESGTE -
At ZTBEHBARE -T—=
FRFA=ZFZX15%TEPEMS
T EFIB o

1R 15 B B BRED B B R R RS 4R S B
& B R A (B 112008% 157 X
") RZZEENF—-—A—HZ®EHR
H B E 88 B s N R 9k 2 IR R
MPEEREDN WAZTPEE
BIZE DR ERS%TEHN - BEC
T——F+-_A=+—HILFE "
EBARRNHENBAT 2 KD
KB ELEHIBERAS (ZF—
—F: AR¥4,2950007T) © & B
FirelEaRkAEMEZEKERF
TR o

RERAR NEBEHRERBDAD
IE &5 18 A R 20,668,000 (= &
—ZF:T) B BREAAK
8o ARNERTERBBEFR - M
WERZERDARIEBEERE
ERBEE - FIERBRABIEERE
BRZZE—\FEm -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M

TAXATION (continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

(Loss) profit before taxation

Tax at the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
rate of 25%

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect attributable to preferential
rate granted to the PRC subsidiary

Deferred tax on undistributed earnings
of the PRC subsidiary

Under(over)provision
in prior years

Taxation for the year

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

9. M\ (#\)
FABBELHEGE B REME
E ek 2 BRELAT (B18) &R
LU
2013 2012
—E—=f —E——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TTT ARBFIT
BrFLAT (E1E) & F (56,740) 93,665
R B EMSHEE25%
g S RHIE (14,185) 23,416
T HMRAY 2
Mg 9,018 4,774
BARBIMAZ
M E - (13)
RERMIBEEB BB E 5,167 -
4% P BT B A RB R R
BB - (11,271)
FEIME AR RS IREAF 2
EERIA - 4,295
BEFEREBTRE
(EBEER ) 36 (15)
FATIE 36 21,186
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B B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-A=+—HLFE

10. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 10. F&IRBT (B1B) BF
2013 2012
—E—= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARETT

(Loss) profit before taxation has been BrEiRT (E18) & P&k
arrived at after charging: THIIE B R EE
Auditor’s remuneration ZE BN & 1,031 1,074
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments &1 70 & 2 I8 £ 84 234 235
Cost of inventories recognised as WRAERZ 2
an expense FERA 158,836 165,108
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BE&
equipment RETE 12,590 12,635
Minimum lease payments in respect of BEMAEMEZ
office premises =R EFKIE 839 684
Minimum lease payments in respect of BERANEREZ
an office equipment SEBERE 5 5
Write-off of property, plant and equipment 1% - /E R4 2 iy = 7
Exchange loss, net M H E518)F 58 253 194
Research and development costs &R 14,007 -
Staff costs (including directors’ =N
emoluments) (BIEEZHE)
— Salaries and other benefits — o RHEMBER 29,584 35,740
— Retirement benefit scheme — RIRAEFEHE
contributions 3R 1,189 1,037
— Share-based payments (included — U BERSR (8
in administrative expenses) ERITHRAXES) 384 12,245
31,157 49,022
Less: Staff costs included in research W T AHRERSN
and development costs 8 TR (853) -
30,304 49,022

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiEBRERAQE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

11.
EMOLUMENTS

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors

and the Chief Executive, were as follows:

For the year ended S
31 December 2013 ST-ALEEE:
Executive directors: HiTES:
Xu Yejun BEE

FRE (R-2-=%
RAZTRBEEER

Zhang Lanyin (designated as
non-gxecutive director on

24 June 2013 and resigned FUAEERNZE
as non-executive directoron  —=F+—-F=++H
27 November 2013) BEEHOES)

Gu Aoxing [resigned on BHO(R-5—=F
27 November 2013) T-AZTLR#)

Ho Yuk Hay (appointed on ffEes (R-5—=F
30 October 2013) TA=THEZH)

Zhao Ping (appointed on BE(RZ2-=F+14
30 October 2013) = THEZH)

Non-executive directors: FHTES:

Gao Zhilong (resigned on BEE(N-E-=F
27 November 2013) + Rz + REHE)

Chow Chi Wa (appointed on A E (R=T-=£
27 November 2013) A= +ta BEf)

Independent non-executive

directors: BUFHITES
Yao Enshu HhaH
Yang Fugiang (resigned on BEE (R-2-=F
27 November 2013) T-AZTLREEMA)
Tsui Siu Hang, Steve freE
Wong Kwong Chi (appointed ~ T#% (R=F—=
on 27 November 2013) T-AZHEBEZM)

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

1. EERIETHRARBZEE
ENSENTEESEREETHA
BrMemT -
Retirement
Performance benefit
Salaries and related scheme Share-based
Fees allowances bonus contributions payments Total
HRBER EREHE WS
fig HERRM b4 (31 #R BRI ait
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AERTR AERTRT ARRTT ARWTR AERTR ARRTR
381 124 - 5 - 510
168 40 - - - 208
127 73 - - - 200
33 - - - - 33
33 - - - - 3
87 - - - - 87
18 - - - - 18
95 - - - - 95
87 - - - - 87
95 - - - - 95
9 - - - - 9
1,133 237 - 5 - 1,375
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B B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

11. DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Salaries and
Fees allowances

e FokEh
RMB'000  RMB'000
AERBTR  ARETR

1. EERERTHRARZHS

(%)
Retirement
Performance benefit
related scheme  Share-based
bonus  contributions payments Total

HRAE RiRREH BRIA R

ZHL REER ERHE a3t

RMB'OOO  RMBO0O  RMBOO0  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR

For the year ended BE_E-"F4-R
31 December 2012: S+-ALEE:
Executive directors; HES:
Xu Yejun RER 380 124 - 4 436 944
Zhang Lanyin RER 260 240 - - 962 1,462
Gu Aoxing BT 140 63 - 2 962 1,167
Non-executive director: FH1ES
Gao Zhilong BEE 97 - - - - 97
Independent non-executive
directors: BUFNTES:
Yao Enshu hEH 97 - - - - 97
Yang Fugiang hEd 97 - - - - 97
Tsui Siu Hang, Steve fripie 97 - - - - 97
1,168 17 - 6 2,360 3,961

Mr. Xu Yejun is also the Chief Executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the Chief Executive. Mr.
Xu also holds shares in the Company which give him
significant influence over the Group.

The performance related bonus is determined by the
performance of individuals.

None of the directors waived any emoluments for both
years.

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiEBRERAQE

BEEBEENDAARBITHRER
EXHBER M E BREBRIER/ITH
REBTRBAZEAZME - 175E
ETFAEARRR WD - WEIE
REBREEAFES -

HRIREE A TIRBEAKRR
EIE -

RZMEFE  HEEEHERR
EfEE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

12. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 12.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, three (2012: three) were directors and the
Chief Executive of the Company whose emoluments
are included in the disclosures in note 11 above. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2012: two) individuals
were as follows:

Salaries and allowances e KRR
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R {Rig F 5T 2] 4L =%
Share-based payments LAR& 0 B ERE T 5K

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

Nil to RMB1,000,000 TE
AR #1,000,0007T
AR #1,000,0017T2
AER#1,500,0007T
AR #1,500,001 702

AR#¥2,000,0007T

RMB1,000,001 to RMB1,500,000

RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

EEEH&

AEEBRTEGERFALTES =4
(ZZ——%: =Z%) RARAZE
ERFETHRAE  EMigER L
XMENPRE - $BTRE (ZF
——F WB) ALzBEmT

2013 2012
—E—=% —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT
917 922
16 27
384 1,633
1,317 2,582
BE 2NN FUATEHE -

2013 2012
—E—=5F —_F—=
Number of Number of

employee employee
BERAB EEAH
1 —

1 1
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B B IS R R Y R

For

the year ended 31 December 2013

BE-F-=6+-A=t-ALFE

13

14.

. DIVIDENDS

13.

BB
2013 2012
—F—= T fF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARETT

Final dividend paid in respect of the year Bf#HE-_ZT——F+—-A
ended 31 December 2012 of nil cent =T —HLIEFEARR

(2012: for the year ended 31 December B A®M L@ HL

2011 of HK1 cent) per ordinary share (ZE——F =%
——F+ZA=+—HI

FE 1B

No dividend was paid or proposed by the Company during
the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, nor has
any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting
period.

(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

(Loss) earnings (EB18) 875
(Loss) earnings for the year
attributable to the owners of the

14.

SEBREANEE (B1R)
ERE AR BGEA A

- 9,840

AAmWERMNSEZRNEE =
T—ZFR_T-—F+_A=+
—ALLFEZRE  BAHBHR
IMERSIRHEAARE .

=i (BiR) 8F

RRREEANEIESRERR#E
(B18) BN TRBATEIETE -

2013 2012
—E—=% —T—CF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FR ARETT

Company for the purpose of basic B2 FE (BE) BF

and diluted (loss) earnings per share

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiEBRERAQE

(56,776) 72,479




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

14. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

14. B (HiR) 827 (])

Number of Number of

shares shares

Bin&E avar 4

2013 2012

—Z—=f —E-—fF

’000 ’000

T Fhx

Number of shares B8 B

Weighted average number of ordinary AT EERERLEE
shares for the purpose of basic and (E518) BFFER 2

diluted (loss) earnings per share TR NAE & 1,200,000 1,200,000

The calculation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2013 had not taken into consideration the
assumed exercised of the Company’s outstanding share
options as it would reduce the loss per share.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
computation of diluted earnings per share did not assume
the exercise of the Company’s options because the
exercise price of the share options was higher than the
average market price of the shares of the Company.

HEBE-F-=F+=A=1-
B IE 4 2 S AR R 3 3T A
B AR AT 6 AR 2N ) R AT 0 2 B R
- BASEBSRERAD -

REBEE_ZT——F+-_HA=+—H
WEFE ARARREREZ1TE
BERARARNZFHTHEE
%o ANFTESREERR RN E
B AR AR T(E
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B B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

COoST

At 1 January 2012
Additions

Disposal

At 31 December 2012

Additions

At 31 December 2013

15. Y% - BEREE

DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT  #7& [

At 1 January 2012
Provided for the year
Eliminated on disposal

At 31 December 2012

Provided for the year
Impairment loss recognised
in profit or loss

At 31 December 2013

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2013

At 31 December 2012

Sinoref Holdings Limited

Furniture Plant,
and fixtures ~ machinery
Leasehold  and office and Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
RERKER BE HSER
BT HEWRKE BOERR 4] KE at
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR
A
WZE-—F-F—H 36,174 159 1,202 103,492 8,071 149,118
HE 524 - 46 258 %8 926
e - - (71) - - (71)
RZB-Z%51+2A
=1-H 36,698 159 1,197 108,750 8,169 149,973
NE 710 - 40 2,436 406 3,592
RZIZ-=%+2H
=+-H 37,408 159 1,237 106,186 8,575 153,565
WZE-—F-F—-H 4,654 101 845 17,694 2,504 25,798
FREE 1,808 58 0 9,327 1,362 12,635
k= 3} = - - (64) - - (64)
RIE-ZETZA
=t+-H 6,462 159 871 27,021 3,856 38,369
ERfE 1835 - 7 9,304 1,284 12,590
RERNERZ
REEE - - - 29,131 - 29,131
RZB-Z£+2A
=+-H 8,297 159 948 65,546 5,140 80,090
FHE
RZE-Z5+ZR
=+-H 29,111 - 289 40,640 3,435 13,475
RIE-ZETZA
=t+-H 30,236 - 326 76,729 4,313 111,604
EMZERER DR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated
residual value, at the following rates per annum:

4.5% - 18%
20% or over the lease term,

Buildings

Leasehold improvements
whichever is shorter

Furniture and fixtures

and office equipment 18%
Plant, machinery and

equipment 9%
Motor vehicles 18%

The buildings are situated on land in the PRC and are held
under medium term leases.

Impairment loss recognised in the current year

During the year, as a result of the unexpected decline in
the performance of the Group, the Group carried out a
review of the recoverable amount of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment. The review led to the recognition of
an impairment loss of RMB29,131,000, which has been
recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable amounts of
the relevant assets have been determined on the basis
of their value in use. The discount rate in measuring the
amounts of value in use were 16.50%. No impairment
assessment was performed in 2012 as there was no
indication of impairment.

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

15. ¥k - EE R (M)

taE - BERREERERZA

REZBEMGAFKEEEAT
FRFENEGHATERFHAE
e :

BF 4.5% —18%
HEMHEEE 20% s IRFHER -
B E A%

REREER

FENER 18%
WE - #es Rk

B 9%
RE 18%

BFURFEAM - RIEPHAELD
A -

RAFERZ AR ERIER

FR- ARAEEBEEZINT
REBEHYE - BE KK 1%&@7
WESEEETTES -  BEEHRE
RIBEE 1B AR 29,131,0007T -
ZEFBECRBEAER - HEE
EMARESBEERELFEHAER
BT - FEFAEESERNAE
L 516.50% ° AR ERED %
WM_T——F W EETRES -
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B B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-A=+—HLFE

16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 16. EHEERE

The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent leasehold AREBFBNAESBEEMR R EIL

land in the PRC under medium term lease and are BIERBRANBEE RS 1 %

amortised to consolidated statement of profit or loss and —EEXNFE—ARAHS0ENEE
other comprehensive income over the lease term of 50 HEGAEZEEM2EKZ XS

years from January 2006. By o
2013 2012
—E—=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT

Analysed for reporting purposes as: MmEMS oMW T :

Non-current asset EREBEE 9,628 9,862
Current asset mENEE 235 235
9,863 10,097

17. INVENTORIES 17. 8
2013 2012
—E—=% —T—CF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFT
Raw materials Rk 9,329 8,845
Work-in-progress ERS 8,673 6,774
Finished goods UK T 4,937 4,360
22,939 19,979

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiEBRERAQE
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18. TRADE RECEIVABLES

The credit period granted by the Group to certain
customers is within 180 days (2012: 180 days), while other
customers are due immediately when goods are delivered.
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the goods delivery date at the end of
the reporting period, which approximated the respective
revenue recognition dates:

0 - 30 days 0£30H

31 - 60 days 31£260H
61 — 90 days 61£290H
91 — 120 days 91F120H
121 — 180 days 1212180H
Over 180 days 180H M

At 31 December 2013, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balances are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of RMB155,643,000 (2012: RMB111,392,000),
which are past due as at the end of the reporting period
for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

18. B HEUFRIA

AEERETEPEHZEER
A180H (ZZ — — 4 : 180H) K
AT E e P 2B R R B R B
BTk e U TRRBRARBEE
AT B H (1% B A AR B A
i) 2528 5 EWGRIERER »
il

2013 2012
—E—=% —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFT
18,802 24,152
16,124 28,579
19,021 30,715
16,301 29,903
24,106 17,802
78,011 -
172,365 131,151

WZE—Z=ZF+-A=+—H" &K
EECESRERFELAHBIERT
{8 A AR #155,643,0000T (==&
——F : AR#¥111,392,0007T) Z
FEWEIR - HRN R REIRE A Hi i
REBIWARELREBSERE - K
SEYEB U FERSE EAEKET

[}
ag °
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B B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not

impaired:

0 — 30 days 0£30H

31 - 60 days 31£60H
61 — 90 days 61290H
91 — 120 days 91F120H
121 — 180 days 121E180H
Over 180 days 180H A &

The Group has not provided for the trade receivables
which are past due but not impaired because the directors
of the Company consider that those receivables are
recoverable based on the good payment record of the
customers and long established trading history with these
customers. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

In determining the recoverability of the trade receivables,
the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the
trade receivables from the date credit was initially granted
up to the end of the reporting period. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
trade receivable at the end of the reporting period and
considers to make impairment losses for irrecoverable
amount accordingly.

At 31 December 2013, included in the trade receivables is
RMB6,537,000 (2012: RMB2,904,000) and RMB883,000
(2012: RMB64,000) that was denominated in EUR and
USD, respectively. All the remaining trade receivables are
denominated in RMB.

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiEBRERAQE

18. BHEUTTRIA (#§)

EmEERREZEFEIRGIEZ
BRERINT -

2013 2012
—E—=F —T—CF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARMBFTT
14,631 19,397
12,829 22,238
14,617 26,000
13,732 27,365
21,823 16,392
78,011 -
155,643 111,392

AEBEVERCAIMERBREZE
S EYGRIBEL B - IR AR
RAEERBEEFPZRIFMNRRLER
HZEEPHEMR HERRBBZ
FRWGRIAR T U@ o AEE W E
St FERT A EERD -

RETE SRR 2 AT o #e
B AEESEEEHAKTRLEE
ERREEHRRHRZE HEWHIA
EEERZMEMEL - Wi AK
BRERRARENESE S EWHIA
B AT El 5 R - 30 E B A [El
TRIFLARNRERERRE

R-ZZE—=F+-A=+—H &
ZEWGRIE B IE S R ABUT RE T
FHE 2 1B A R#6,537,0007T (=
T ——4F : AR%2,004,0007T) &
AR 883,000 (ZE—=F : A
R #64,0007T) - A#AFTAE 5N
FREAAREFE -
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19. BILLS RECEIVABLES

The aged analysis of bills receivables presented based on
the goods delivery date at the end of the reporting period
are analysed as follows:

1212 180H
180H A £

121 — 180 days
Over 180 days

At 31 December 2013, the carrying value of bills
receivables include bills endorsed to suppliers on a
full recourse basis that are not yet due amounting to
RMB17,822,000 (2012: RMB16,844,000). As the Group
has not transferred the significant risks and rewards
relating to these bills receivables, it continues to recognise
the full carrying amount of the bills receivables as assets
in the consolidated financial statements. The associated
trade payables secured over the bills endorsed to the
suppliers which were not yet due at the end of the
reporting period are recognised as current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Bills receivables endorsed to suppliers BEEBRE
with full recourse: B& E@%Hﬁliﬁ :
Carrying amount of transferred assets CEEREEREA
Carrying amount of associated liabilities AR & & 2 REE
Net position e

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

i3 gk

RERER REERRIFHHEE

Pz EREERESITOT
2013 2012
—E—=F T4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARET T
408 _
32,446 46,937
32,854 46,937

N_E—=F+ZA=+—H &
KWEENRAERREEMARE
ERHREFEEEBEMHEARIER
H &1\ A R#17,822,0007T (=
T——%F : AR¥16,844,0007L) °
BHRASERREEEAZSRENR
ZEMNERERIER  HAEE
%ﬁé MR A RRPERERE
BH2HEAEAREE - MEER
EEMNER (REBEFREREATE)
WMEREHEE SENRBEBRES
MBRARPEERRRBEE -

2013 2012
—E—=% —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARMBFT
17,822 16,844
(17,822) (16,844)

Annual Report 2013 —Z—=FF

107



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2013

BH=E

19.

20.

21.

Sinoref Holdings Limited

—E—=F+-_A=+—B8LFE

BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)
All the bills receivables are denominated in RMB.

The maturity dates of endorsed bills were less than six
months from the end of the reporting period.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

At 31 December 2013, bank balances carried interest
at an average interest rate of 0.35% (2012: 0.41%) per
annum.

At 31 December 2013, included in the bank balances and
cash is RMB12,589,000 (2012: RMB630,000) that was
denominated in HKD and RMB82,000 (2012: nil) that was
denominated in USD. All the remaining bank balances and
cash are denominated in RMB.

TRADE PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the goods receipt date at the end of
the reporting period.

0 - 30 days 0&30H

31 - 60 days 31£E60H
61 — 90 days 61£290H
Over 90 days 90H M

EMZERERAT

19.

20.

21.

B RiE ()
P R AAR B ATE -

BERRERRARES 2ZMA
BORNER -

BITHBRRA®

NR-ZZT—=F+=-_A=+—8"
THEHHRIZFHFEFEID% (ZF—
ZHE0.41%) TR -

W-_E—=F+_F=+—08" 3
ARTTEBREASHNESEARE
12,589,000 (ZZE——F: AR
#630,0007T) LUBTLATE R AR
82,0007t (ZE—=F : &) PLZET
FHE - FTASR TRITEHR KRB
ARHEEHE -

RHEMRE

AT RE S EMNFIBR B RARRE
BEBERBMZY 2 REe DT

2013 2012
—E—=F —ET——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARET T

11,198 10,617

6,160 5,686

2,337 2,776

9,017 3,458

28,712 22 537




21.

22,

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

TRADE PAYABLES (continued)

The credit period granted by the suppliers to the Group is
within 30 days.

At 31 December 2013, included in the trade payables was
RMB17,822,000 (2012: RMB16,844,000) secured over
bills receivables endorsed to suppliers that were not yet
due for payment.

The carrying amounts of the trade payables at the end of

21.

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

RHEMRE (8)

HERARANEER L ZEEHR30
BA -

RZE—=F+-HA=+—8"
HAABZENRENSEPRE
MHEFIEENERER (HK
IEFA HNERBFHRBEARE
17,822,000t (ZZE——4F: AR
#16,844,0007T) °

Al

|

REHRHR - BZFENFAZEE

the reporting period are denominated in RMB.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

Other payables
Payables for acquisition of property,

HoAth JE A 5RIR

BEAARBHE -

22, AfafEftRIARENEH

WEm= - BERRELZ

plant and equipment FEA5RIE
Accrued sales commission FERTSHE RS
Accrued professional fees EHEEER
Accrued staff costs FEEH B TR AR
Other tax payables HAth FETFRIE

2013 2012

=% —E--F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

996 1,153

- 3,119

11,680 17,440

976 1,004

2,035 1,880

1,769 7,470

17,456 32,066
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_Z—=F+-A=+—HLFE

23. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

At 1 January 2012
Charge for the year (note 9)

At 31 December 2012 and
at 31 December 2013

24. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
At 1 January 2012, 31 December
2012 and 2013

Issued:
At 1 January 2012, 31 December
2012 and 2013

Shown in the consolidated financial
statements
At 1 January 2012, 31 December
2012 and 2013

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiEBRERAQE

23. REERIAA R

Undistributed
earnings of the
PRC subsidiary

FERBATFZ
KRBT
RMB’000
ARET T
R-ZFE——F—H—H 9,425
FRTHE () 4,295
RZEBE——F+_A=+—HEK
—E—=%+=-A=+—H 13,720
24. BB&F
Number of
shares at
HK$0.10
per share Amount
WAk E{EO0.10
BTz ERiEE k4]
’000 HK$’'000
T FET
VETE ¢
WZZE—=F—H—H -
—E-FR-E-=F
+=-A=+—H 3,000,000 300,000
BT
RZFE—=—F—H—8-
—E-_FRE—=F
+=-—A=+—H 1,200,000 120,000
LAV BRERATR
RNZE—=—F—H—H1"
—E-—-FK-F—=% RMB’000 equivalent 104,201
+=—A=+—H ARBTREE




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”),
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 7 June
2010 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
directors and eligible employees, and will expire on 6
June 2020. Under the Scheme, the board of directors of
the Company may grant options to eligible employees,
including directors (excluding non-executive directors) of
the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares
in the Company.

At 31 December 2013, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Scheme was 8,000,000 (2012: 120,000,000),
representing 0.67% (2012: 10%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at that date. The total number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the
Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The number
of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which
options granted and may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 20 days from the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. Options
may be exercised at any time from 1 year from the date
of grant of the share option to the 10th anniversary of
the date of grant. The exercise price is determined by the
directors of the Company, and will not be less than the
higher of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of grant, (i) the average closing price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company’s share.

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

25. LB ERMTRES

RABRBER-_Z—TFALR
B RFERR AR B ([3%
iElD TZEMERESELAE
RIEB R EER - &t &R =
Z_TEXANBER - RIBEZF
g ARAEFEARNAERESR
(BREARFALREMBRARNES
TEBEFNTES) ROBRE - U
RIBARBAD

R-—ZZE—=FE+-A=+—0 1§
Bzt a8l R i MR ITE 2 BB R
TR K 2 B 1n £ B A&8,000,0004%
(= & — — 4 :120,000,0000%)
BERARRRZATEITRDZ
0.67% (ZE— 4 : 10%) « f£ &
KARNBIBRRERIERBRT - 1B
Bt 8l BARERTS Rk 2 &
17 AR BT 15 FRIB AN A 5] R {7 B
BEEITRM Z210% « EREARR A
BERBLMABRLT - EREERA
TREM—FRERRAIERZE
PRIERTS R 2 BBITRE FEITR
MEE - TEBBARRRIEME
BMEBITRNDZ1% -

BREREALERNE D BB
0B AT HBRBRES 1B
TC o B EEARAE o BMIRE N R
PRERER SR —FEEEEA
HEstm AT E B LR
- TEEBHARRESETE B
TMERUTHEEE (VA2 R KRGO
REBAHZKTE: (\ARRRKRNG
REERLAPITAEEXAZF
BUWTHE  K(i)A QRGO EE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2013

BH=E

25. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

Date of grant

EHAK

22 November 2010
“F-TE+-A-+ZA

22 November 2010
“T-TF+-A-+ZA

22 November 2010
“E-FET-AZtCR

27 September 2011
~F-—FAR=TLA

27 September 2011
“F-—FAA-TLA

27 September 2011
“E-—FAAtA

—E-=E+-ASt+—ALEE

Vesting period

22 November 2010 to
21 November 2011
ZE-TF+-AZtZHE
—2-—t-A=t-8

22 November 2010 to
21 November 2012
“I-ZEF-AZZHE -
ZF-ZF+-A=+-H

22 November 2010 to
21 November 2013

“B-BE{-A+0AE -

ZE-=F+-A=+-H

27 September 2011 to
26 September 2012
Z2-——FNAZ+LRZE
ZZ-ZFNAZTA

27 September 2011 to
26 September 2013
“ZT——¥NA-ttAE
ZZ-ZFNAZTA

27 September 2011 to
26 September 2014
ZT-—EAAZTtEHE
ZE-MEAR=TAA

Exercisable at 31 December 2013
IR-E-=F+-f=+-B7fF

Weighted average exercise price

mEFaRE

Sinoref Holdings Limited

EMZERERAT

Exercisable period

frEs

22 November 2011 to
21 November 2020
“F—Ft-AZtZRE
ZFIEFT-ACt-H

22 November 2012 to
21 November 2020
~§-—F+-R-t-AZ
_7_7¢+ Azt-H

22 November 2013 to

21 November 2020
$-=F+-f=1-AZ

:T_T¢+ Azt-H

27 September 2012 to
26 September 2021
—E_

ZE-ZFNAZTEAE
ZEZ-FARZ+H

27 September 2013 to
26 September 2021
T-ZEAAZTHHE
:2: ENAZT/E
27 September 2014 to
26 September 2021
ZE-MENAZTLRZE
“EC-EAAZHRA

&

25.

Exercise
price

iR

HKS1.408
140887

HK$1.408
1.408/57C

HK$1.408
1.408% T

HK$0.476
0.476%TC

HK30.476
047657

HK$0.476
0476787

LIRS ERARIS (&)

Number of share options
fRERA
Balance at
1.1.2012, Cancelled
31.12.2012 and during Balance at
1.1 2013 the year 31.12.2013
m—v —
-A-A-
—E-Z%
+ZB=+-HR RZE-=%
8-c% +ZA=+-8
—B—-HZ#e FERiER b4 -
18,000,000 (16,800,000) 1,200,000
18,000,000 (16,800,000) 1,200,000
24,000,000 (22,400,000) 1,600,000
18,000,000 (16,800,000) 1,200,000
18,000,000 (16,800,000 1,200,000
24,000,000 (22,400,000 1,600,000
120,000,000 (112,000,000) 8,000,000
6,400,000
HK$0.942
0.94277C



25.

26.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
cancelled 112,000,000 share options granted to the
grantees. The release of share options reserve of
approximately RMB30,038,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
Group reversed total share-based payment expenses
of RMB5,376,000 recognised during the year ended 31
December 2013.

During the year, the Group recognised the total expense
of RMB384,000, after adjusting the reversal of total share-
based payment expenses of RMB5,376,000 as stated
above (2012: RMB12,245,000) in relation to share options
granted by the Company.

OPERATING LEASES

At 31 December 2013, the Group had commitment for
minimum lease payment under non-cancellable operating
leases which fall due as follows:

—FR
F_FEFHF

Within one year
In the second to fifth year inclusive

(BRREEMSF)

The commitments represent rentals payable by the Group
for its office in Hong Kong and an office equipment with
terms of up to five years.

Monthly rental was fixed and recognised over the terms of
the lease on a straight-line basis.

25.

26.

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

LI BERARRS ()

BHE-_ZT—=F+=-HA=+—H1t
FE AEEFHTITBETEREADN
112,000,00017 & IR HE - fRRR i IR 12
& 18 49 A R #30,038,0007T J5 1A 47
AR RITERRAEERD
TREBEE-ZE—=H+-A=1+—
B IEFE R AR D A ER A&
X 4888 AR #5,376,0007T °

FRN - KRERD LR R/E
e 51 2 48 58 A R #5,376,0007T
% AEBBRAQARFRLZBRE
TR 7 S 4858 A R ¥#384,0007T (=
T——F : AR¥12,245,0007T) °

EEHR

RZZBE—=F+_A=+—0" &
SEBRBETIHBECEHEEBUT
REBEMNRZEE  HIBBR
LU

2013 2012

—=E—=5F —E—-—4F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARBFIT

497 795

4 506

501 1,301

ZEREEASEMRBEBEARLF 2

EERRERRAEREEMS ZHE
{_;E o

BAES TR ERAREREERE
MR -

Annual Report 2013 —Z—=FF

113



114

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B B IS R R Y R

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

27. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying Hong Kong
employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Mandatory benefits are provided under the MPF
Scheme. The Group contributes the lower of 5% of the
relevant payroll costs and HK$1,250 (HK$1,000 before 1
June 2012) per employee to the MPF Scheme.

Employees of subsidiary in the PRC are members of the
state-sponsored pension schemes operated by the PRC
government. The subsidiary is required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the pension scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the state-sponsored pension schemes is to

make the required contributions.

The total contribution to the retirement benefit schemes
charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income is RMB1,189,000 (2012:

RMB1,037,000).

27. BkiaFIstEl

AEBAEMELCEARKREBEER
sl EestE ([BESE
g Bz EEEAEER
WEESHER  FHRNEFEAEL
FlzEe - meltEEABEARES
SERE - AEEABMNESKREA
A% £5%8 1,250 T (R=ZF—=
FNA—HBRIA1,00087T) F 28
EEmEESFEIER -

FEMEARZEEE 2T EK
[FEBzEARERAKSHHE - %
MEBARAREEF ERXREE DL
AR K&t SR - /5 TE AR B
NEE AEERLFEREDE
R et &) 2 M —F B To M R E 3

Eo
A °

Bt AfeBakEMmE2EKaEE
ZRKRBRHEEBHIABARE
1,189,000 (ZZE——4F : AR¥
1,087,0007T) °

28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28. MEHXH

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management for both years was as follows:

Short-term benefits

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Share-based payments

The remuneration of directors and key executives is

FTEEBEASFMH

E=NHMTIEEEEKERMIE

FEZHMMNOT -

2013 2012

—E—=%F —E——fF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARBEFIT

52 HifE A 2,979 3,105
RIREFFT 2R 58 64
LARS 17 A BB S 3R 384 6,998
3,421 10,167

E=NTETHRABZME T HE

determined by the remuneration committee having regard MZEexE@MARBE LTS B

to the performance of individuals and market trends.

Sinoref Holdings Limited ZEMiEBRERAQE

MmEE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR M

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 29. FRTMBRAE

THE COMPANY

(@) Financial information of the statement of financial

position of the Company

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Property, plant and equipment
Amounts due from subsidiaries

Current asset
Bank balances

Current liability
Other payables and accruals

Net current assets (liabilities)

Total assets less current liability

Capital and reserves
Share capital (note 24)
Reserves

Total equity

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

FRENEE
RIB AR ZE
Y E RN G
P& 2 o /B X R R IR
RENEE
RITHEER
RBRR

Hib e IR N ER B

RERE (AfR) $E

RERERTEDBHAR

EERER
fEA (B 5E24)
E

e

(a)

RRBRPBRR TR BER
2013 2012
—Z—=f —E—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFT
174 174

10 15
220,856 229,977
221,040 230,166
4,583 429
(1,622) (1,796)
2,961 (1,367)
224,001 228,799
104,201 104,201
119,800 124,598
224,001 228,799
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

29. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

(b)

Sinoref Holdings Limited

Movement of capital and reserves of the

Company

At 1 January 2012

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

Final dividend for year ended
31 December 2011

Recognition of equity settled
share-based payments

At 31 December 2012

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

Recognition of equity settled
share-based payments

Release of share options reserve
upon cancellation of equity-settled
share options arrangement

At 31 December 2013

RZE-ZF
-A-H

ERBRRER
2ARYHEE

HE-Z——F
tZA=f-ALt
EEZRERS
TRAEENR
BERER

R-T-—%
T-A=t+-H

ENBEREM
ikt

EAREEEARD
BEREH

HERAEERRE
wHERRERE
=1

BZ$-Z

+ZA=t+-H

EMZERERAT

29. FLAFIMBIRRE (8&)

(b) FDAFEXRRBEHEEE

Share
Share Share options Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
k¥ BhAR  BREKE REA% &r
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT  ARETRT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR
104,201 80,442 19,939 37,397 241,979
- - - (15,585) (15,585)
- - - (9,840) (9,840)
- - 12,245 - 12,245
104,201 80,442 32,184 11,972 228,799
- - - (5,182) (5,182
- - 384 - 384
- - (30,038) 30,038 -
104,201 80,442 2,530 36,828 224,001




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

30. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY

30.

Issued and Proportion of

Place and date of fully paid ownership

incorporation/ share capital/  interest held by
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital the Company

300 ERTREERE / NG
MELREHE BRIBE%RAH EmEs  FAHEESLH
Sinoref (BVI) Limited The British Virgin Islands USS$2 100%

12 January 2010 Ve

ABRUEE

“E-RE-A1CH
Sinoref (Hong Kong) Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS1 100%
Rk (58) BRAE 17 February 2010 137

B8

“S-SF-AftH
Sinoref Yixing# The PRC RMB151,716,600 100%
EfEE 20 July 2005 AR%151,716,6007T

B
“ERRFLAZTH

# Wholly foreign owned enterprise registered in the PRC.

All of the subsidiaries are indirectly wholly owned by the
Company except for Sinoref (BVI) Limited which is directly
wholly owned by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

e NG PR

Proportion of
voting power
held by
the Company Principal activities
NG
BRELE FERE

100% Investment holding

REER

100% Investment holding
RARK

100% Manufacture and sale

of advanced stegl flow
control products
LEREERREKER
Em
# KPRz INRERE -
FEMBARRARAIHEEZER
A MESinoref (BVI) Limitedd A2
AIEEREHS -

FRAMEMBRARETEMNERE
#O
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For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

31.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)

Sinoref Holdings Limited

On 10 January 2014, the Company entered into a
conditional placing and subscription agreement with
placing agent and a shareholder of the Company in
relation to, among others, the placing of a maximum
of 200,000,000 existing ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.38 each to not less than six
placees who are not acting in concert with connected
persons of the Company at HK$0.38 per placing
share, representing a discount of approximately
18.28% to the closing price on 10 January 2014. The
whole amount of the net proceeds of approximately
HK$75 million will be used for general working capital
and/or to finance potential investment projects. The
placing shares to be placed under the placing and
subscription agreement will be issued pursuant to
a general mandate obtained at the annual general
meeting of the Company on 18 June 2013. Details
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 10 January 2014.

EMZERERAT

31. REMEER

(a)

RZZE—MF—A+H AR
AHEEEERERARTREL
VEBRHEERREHE A
ANEB (AR aE) UERE
ER17H0.38B L HER (BN
ZE—NMF-A+HMKT
BT EH18.28%) i EHZ
200,000,000/% & 2~ 7] & fx &
B0.38% TR E LB T T
DR E AR A (R FEEAR
ARIBEEAL—ITE) © BT
15 R IE SRR B 47,5008 8
THRE—REEESR K
RETHREBEREES - R
BEERRBHES TSN
RERDERBENR_-Z—=4F
NATNBZARRARRRBEF
Rg LESH—MREERET -
BEFBENRARRBRAEZE
—MF—-AB+HEMRMHAE

o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

(o)

On 7 March 2014, the Company entered into a share
transfer agreement with Rainbow Phoenix Holdings
Limited, an independent third party, to acquire the
entire equity interest in Accurate Trade International
Limited and its subsidiaries (“Accurate Group”) at
a consideration of RMB55,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$69,750,000). RMB45,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$57,070,000) of the
consideration will be settled by allotting and issuing
the 92,052,000 shares of the Company at the issue
price on the completion date and the remaining
RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$12,680,000) will be settled by allotting and
issuing the 20,456,000 shares of the Company at
the issue price within 7 business days upon the
fulfillment of the profit guarantee of the Accurate
Group for the financial year ending 31 December
2014. Upon the completion of the acquisition, the
Accurate Group will become the wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company. As at the date of the
issuance of this report, the acquisition has not been
completed subject to fulfilment of certain terms and
conditions and the relevant regulatory approvals.
Details were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 7 March 2014.

e MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE-_ZT—=F+-A=+—HLFE

31. REMEER ()

RZE-—MF=ALH" K
/X 8] B J& 37 5 = J7Rainbow
Phoenix Holdings Limited
R R E R A
Accurate Trade International
Limited H [ B 2 7
([Accurate Groupl) H 2 Z5M%
# - R{E R ARES55,000,000
T (H8 % R #969,750,000
Bl EFREARE
45,000,0007T (#H & R 4
57,070,000/ 7T) #4@ B8R 5T
KB ER BT ERE R
92,052,000/ 48 & 7 i 15 S
- meR T AR%10,000,000
7T (# % R #112,680,000%
JT) #i@iBfEAccurate Group
HE-_FT—NF+=-A=+—
B 1B B R v A AR R E A
B EE X B RNIRBETERE
K % 4720,456,0000% 2 A 7] A%
MEA - FREBEETHE
Accurate Group#§ik &2 A 7]
MEEMB AR - RTIEAR
HHE - WEEEHARTK
TARFE TR G E K R A8
MR EWIBILER S RIEER -
BHEFBERARRIBRHAZZE
—MOFE=HA BN RMAE

E%o
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Summary of Results, Assets and Liabilities

XA EEREEHE

Turnover

Profit (loss) and total
comprehensive income
(expense) for the year
attributable to owners of
the Company

Earnings (loss) per share
(RMB)
- Basic

- Diluted

Total assets
Less: Total liabilities

Total net assets

Sinoref Holdings Limited

AREEBA
FEIHF A A
(B8) RFR

2EBA (FX)
ek

slaEN (BH)
(AR®)
— B

—#E

mEEFE

EMZERERAT

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
*EREBE+T_A=1+—BHLEEZER

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—ETHhEF —E-TF —T—F —T——-_F ZIZEB-Z§
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETT AR®TRT
156,896 318,762 323,421 322,671 186,436
70,076 130,056 92,011 72,479 (56,776)
0.08 0.12 0.08 0.06 (0.05)

N/AZ i F 0.12 0.08 0.06 (0.05)

Assets and liabilities of the Group at 31 December

FRERT-A=+—HZRERAR

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—TTNE ZT-TF —T——F T IZB-ZFf
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTE ARETT ARETT ARWTR
189,505 530,547 622,476 694,552 628,753
(35,928)  (60,550)  (77,631)  (74,823)  (65,416)
163,577 469,997 544,845 619,729 563,337




>
SinoRrREF

EMERBERLT
SINOREF HOLDINGS LIMITED
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